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Chairman

Members of the Board of Commissioners
Morgan County, Georgia

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the close of
each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to the requirements, we hereby issue the

comprehensive annual financial report of Morgan County, Georgia for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010.

This report demonstrates how the County receives, spends, and accounts for financial resources and
illustrates the key indicators of its financial strength. Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation rests with the County. We believe that the data as presented
is accurate in all material aspects. Readers are encouraged to consider the presented information in
conjunction with the information provided in management’s discussion and analysis, the financial
statements, and the notes to the financial statements.

Profile of the Government

Morgan County is located 58 miles southeast of the city limits of the City of Atlanta and encompasses
349.7 square miles. The 2009 population estimate from the U.S. Census Bureau is 18,761. The
County was formed from sections of Baldwin County in 1807. Georgia's 32nd county is named for
Revolutionary War General Daniel Morgan who defeated the British at Cowpens. It is the home of Hard
Labor Creek State Park, Georgia’s largest state park. The City of Madison has been the county seat since
its incorporation in 1809. Madison has the largest designated historic district in Georgia, which
encompasses most of the town. Morgan County is also home to the City of Rutledge, founded in 1845, the
City of Bostwick, and the City of Buckhead, founded in 1891.

The County operates under a Commission-Manager form of government. Under this system of local
government, the Commissioners are policy makers who establish a vision for the County, and who hire
the Manager to carry out policy. The Board of Commissioners consists of five members, who serve on a
part-time basis and are elected to staggered terms of four years. The Manager is responsible for directing
day-to-day operations and coordinating the work of department heads and other employees.

Morgan County provides a full range of services, including law enforcement; corrections; the construction
and maintenance of buildings, parks, streets and highways; parks and recreation activities; 911 emergency
communications, voter registration and elections, county systems tax assessment and collection, building
inspections, planning and zoning, solid waste collection and recycling, and general administrative and
support activities. .

Economic condition and outlook

Morgan County has not been immune to the sluggish economy but continues to sustain a stable ﬁnanc_ial
position. The Board of Commissioners, County Manager and departments have displayed impressive
financial stewardship over the years. This stewardship has established the financial foundation that has
allowed the County to endure the uncertainty of these economic times.

The unemployment rate, reported by the U. S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, for Morggn Coupty .fc_>r
September 2010 was 9.6. While this mirrors the national unemployment rate for the same time period it is
slightly below that of the State of Georgia’s unemployment rate of 9.9.
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Total taxable assessed property values increased by 2 percent for the 2009 property tax year. However,
values declined for the 2010 property tax year and are expected to again decline in 2011 increasing the
need to further reduce expenditures.

During the budgeting process departments are being required to be more succinct with budget requests.
This change in the budget process has streamlined efforts and ensured that budgeted items are not
duplicated between departments. The County has been able to avoid mandatory employee furloughs or
layoffs which many governments are implementing. As revenue sources are strained and costs continue
to climb, County staff continues to actively search for funding sources through grants opportunities.

Internal controls

County management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal accounting control
system. This system is designed to ensure that County assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal accounting controls are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of an accounting control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and 2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgment by management.

Budget controls

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the County’s financial plan and assists in control of the
financial stability and health of the government. As required by the statues of the State of Georgia, the
County adopts annually a balanced budget. The legal level of control (i.e. the spending level at which
expenditures may not legal exceed appropriations) is at the department level within a given fund.
Reallocation of appropriations between line-items is acceptable within a given department. Additional
details regarding budgetary controls may be found in Note 2 of the notes to the financial statements.

Cash management

The County’s funds are deposited into interest-bearing accounts. The County’s investment program is
managed in accordance with all applicable laws. Investment objectives include the safeguarding of public
funds through minimization of market and security risk and maximizing utilization of funds with respect
to liquidity and earnings.

Independent audit

The financial statements included in this report are prepared in compliance with governmental financial
reporting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board; guidelines issued by the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada, and generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to governmental entities. State of Georgia statutes require an annual
audit by an independent Certified Public Accountant. The report of the accounting firm of Bates Carter &
Co., LLP on the County’s basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this CAFR.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) established the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program (CAFR Program). This
program reco_gnizes those governments that go beyond the minimum requirements of generally accepted
accounting principles to prepare CAFR’s that represent the spirit of transparency and full disclosure. This
award is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR conforms to program
requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for award.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
December 29, 2010

Board of Commissioners
MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
Madison, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA, as of, and for the year ended
June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Commissioners of
MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Morgan County Health Department
and Morgan County Hospital Authority, component units of the County, as of and for the year then ended
June 30, 2010, which statements reflect total assets of $424,053 and $6,430,000, as of June 30, 2010,
and total revenues of $560,603 and $13,109,000, respectively, for the year then ended. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us and our opinion on the
basic financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Morgan County Health
Department and Morgan County Hospital Authority, are based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA, as
of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows,
thercof, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December
29, 2010, on our consideration of MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA's internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts, grants,
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Pension Funding Progress, Budgetary
Comparison Schedule-General Fund, and other data are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purposc of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively compromise MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA’s basic financial statements. The combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and supplemental budgetary comparison schedules are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and supplemental budgetary
comparison schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying schedule of projects constructed with Special Sales Tax Proceeds is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by Official Code of Georgia 48-8-121, and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

bobo, eb5rby LA
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The discussion and analysis of Morgan County’s financial performance provides an overview of
the County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Please read iii-xii in
conjunction with the County’s financial statements, which begin on page 1.

As a result of the enactment of GASB 34, the County is required to present a discussion and
analysis of its financial condition and performance for the year ended June 30, 2010.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The County’s assets exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2010 by $66,489,181 (Net
Assets). Of this amount, $8,491,117 is considered unrestricted and can be used to
meet the County’s ongoing obligations.

. The County’s total net assets decreased by $480,989 (Change in Net Assets). This
is discussed in further detail in the Government-Wide Financial Analysis.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Morgan County’s basic
financial statements. Morgan County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements, presented on
pages 1 and 2, provide a broad overview of Morgan County’s finances in a manner similar to that
of private-sector businesses. The statements include the following:

. The Statement of Net Assets presents the County’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, the change in net
assets is an indicator of the improvement (an increase) or deterioration (a
decrease) in the County’s financial condition.

. The Statement of Activities presents the revenues and expenses of the County.
The difference between these is the change in net assets for the year.

Both of the government-wide financial statements identify the various functions of Morgan
County that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges. The governmental activities of Morgan County, Georgia include general
government, public safety, court systems, health and welfare, recreation and culture, public
works, and housing and development. The business-type activity of Morgan County, Georgia is
the Solid Waste operation.

ix



The government-wide financial statements include not only Morgan County, Georgia itself
(known as the primary government), but also a legally separate Health Department and Hospital
Authority for which Morgan County, Georgia is financially accountable. Financial information
for these component units is reported separately from financial information presented for the
primary government itself.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the County can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County’s near term
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the
General Fund, Capital Projects Fund (which was closed during the year), and SPLOST, all of
which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements on pages 47 and 48 of this
report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Special Revenue
Funds. Project length budgets are adopted for the Capital Projects Funds. A Budgetary
Comparison Schedule has been provided for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds to
demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 3 and 5 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains one proprietary fund. Enterprise (proprietary) funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The County uses an enterprise fund to account for the Solid Waste
operation.



Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 7-9 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 10 and 11 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 14-42 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the County’s pension
plans on pages 43 and a schedule of budgetary comparisons for the general fund on pages 44 and
45. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 46-58 of
this report, and Schedules of Projects Constructed with Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax
can be found on page 61-62.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

During FY 2010, Morgan County, on an entity-wide basis, had a decrease in net assets of
$480,989 which is the result of adding the $239,327 decrease in governmental activities and the
decrease in net assets for business type activities of $241,662. The change in governmental
activities is discussed below, and the change in business type activities is discussed under the
heading Proprietary Funds.

The County had total Net Assets of $66,489,181, of which $56,963,990, net of debt and
accumulated depreciation, was invested in capital assets. The table below shows the split of net

assets between governmental and business-type activities.

Morgan County, Georgia's Net Assets

June 30

Gavernmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Capital assets (net of depreciation) Y 74931772 § 65,810254 S 435751 § 498,269 § 75,367,523 § 66,308,523
Current and other assets 10,324,370 22511204 112,330 322377 10,436,700 22833581
Total Assets 85,256,142 88321438 548,081 820,646 85,804,223 89,142,104
Long-term liabilitics 18,671,619 19,914,322 342,187 374,197 19,013,806 20,288,519
Other liabilities 257,996 1,841,282 43240 42,132 301,236 1,883.414
Total liabilities 18929615 21,755,604 385427 416329 19,315,042 22,171,933
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 56,528,239 55,714,514 435,751 498,269 56,963,990 56,212,783
Restncted 1,034,074 2,894,625 - - 1,034,074 2,894,625
Unsestnicted 8764214 1,956,715 (273,097) (93.952) 8491117 7,862,763

2 :

Total net assets 66,326 527 66,565,854 162,654 404317 66,489,181 66,970,171
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Total government-wide revenue for Fiscal Year 2010 was $19,543,553. Of this amount,
$19,255,936 was in governmental activities and approximately $287,617 in business-type
activities. The chart below shows the distribution of total primary government revenues.

Morgan County, Georgia's Changes in Net Assets

REVENUES
Program revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Subtotal for Program Revenues
General revenues
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Other Taxes
Unrestricted Investment Eamings
Grants and Contributions not restricted to
a specific program
Gain on sale of capital assels
Subtotal for General Revenues

Total Revenuces

EXPENSES

Program expenses
Gengeral Government
Public Safety
Court System
Health & Welfare
Recreation & Culture
Public Works
Housing and Development
Interest and Paying Agent Fecs
Solid Waste

Total expenses

Change in Net Assets before Transfers
Transfers
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, beginning of year
Change in Accounting Principle
Net Asscts, end of year

Year Ended June 30
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
$ 2,731,734 § 2873900 S 287,163  § 341,034 S 3,018897 3.214934
1,021,163 345,115 - - 1.021,163 345,115
320317 412,386 - - 320317 412386
4073214 3.631.401 287,163 341,034 4360377 3.972.435
8,312,443 8,263,596 - - 8,312.443 8.263,596
5,963,470 5,797,590 - - 5,963,470 5.797.590
769,287 841,111 - - 769,287 841,111
92,485 261,418 454 1,699 92,939 263,117
- 307,172 - - - 307.172
45,037 68.111 - - 45,037 68111
15,182,722 15,538,998 454 1,699 15,183,176 15,540,697
19,255,936 19,170,399 287,617 342,733 19.543.553 19.513.132
3,351,744 3,133,984 - - 3,351,744 3,133,984
5,307,303 5,191,945 - - 5,307,303 5,191,945
1,184,957 1,157,153 - - 1,184,957 1,157,153
1,659,014 1,828 844 - - 1,659.014 1.828,844
1,219,227 965,780 - - 1,219,227 965,780
4,855,857 4,792,370 - - 4,855,857 4,792,370
661,589 764,023 - - 661,589 764,023
830,572 869,746 - - 830,572 869,746
- - 954,279 1,173,153 954,279 1,173,153
19.070.263 18,703,845 954279 1,173,153 20,024,542 19.876 998
185,673 466,554 (666,662) (830,420) (480,989) (363,866)
{425,000) (878,485) 425000 878 485 - -
(239.327) (411,931) {241,662) 48,065 {480.989) (363 866)
66,565,854 72,248,933 404,316 356,252 66,970,170 72,605,185
- (5.271,148) - - - 271,148
56626521 66365850 S__J62634 S__304317 S_SGIMOII S 8697017

General Revenues such as Property Taxes and Local Option Sales Tax supplement the
Governmental Activities. General Government required $2,724,846, Judicial required $141,980,
Public Safety required $4,397,598, Public Works required $4,118,601, Health and Welfare
required $1,326,316, Recreation required $945,533, Housing and Development $511,603 of

General Revenues.
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Revenues by Source
Government-Wide Activities

Other4% 2% Other * 59, Operating Grants

15% Charges for Services

Sales Tax 31%

43% Property Tax

* Other, Investment 0%. Capital Grants 2%

*Due to rounding, charts may not always equal 100%

Government-wide expenses were $20,024,542 for 2010, of which $19,070,263 were for
governmental activities and $954,279 for business-type activities. The chart below shows further
detail of total primary government expenses.

Expenses by Function
Government-Wide Activities

Solid Waste 5%
Interest 4%

17% General Government

Housing & Development 3%

Public Works 24%
27% Public Safety

Recreation 6%

Health & Welfare 8% 6% Court System
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

The primary governmental funds are the General Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, and SPLOST.
As the county completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet on
page 3) reported a combined fund balance of $7,514,410, which is $10,753,134 less than last
year’s total. The decrease in the SPLOST fund balance was $11,190,250, which is the expected
result from spending the proceeds of the bonds. The fund balance in the General Fund increased
$1,052,689. Local Option Sales taxes collected were about $336,397 below projected budget. A
variety of other taxes were about $30,928 below budget while expenditures were below budget
for most departments. The Capital Projects fund balance decreased by $6,926 because the fund
was closed to the General Fund at the beginning of the year.

In 2010, Governmental revenues were down $50,764 from fiscal year 2009. Property taxes were
up $- due to slight increase in the digest. Charges for services were up $- due to the County,
through an agreement with the Morgan County Board of Education, receiving reimbursements
for prior year and current year expenditures for school resource officers as well as other minor
items. Investment income was down $168,934 due to lower interest rates and cash balances.

The total amount of sales tax revenue for fiscal year 2010 was $5,963,470 which is a 3%
increase from FY 2009 due to the slight economic recovery. Morgan County currently shares
two different taxes on all sales within the county. The Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) is a direct
offset to the property taxes and is renewed every ten years by agreement with the City of
Madison, the City of Bostwick, the City of Buckhead and the City of Rutledge. The latest
agreement renewed in FY 2003 distributes the funds 73% to the County, 22% to the City of
Madison, 4% to the City of Rutledge, .60% to the City of Bostwick, and .40% to the City of
Buckhead. A SPLOST referendum passed in a November 2006 election was effective April 1,
2007 with an expiration date of March 31, 2013 or at the end of the quarter where the raising of
$26,000,000 is reached, whichever occurs first. Distribution of monthly SPLOST V funds are
based on a percentage distribution as agreed upon by the following municipalities: City of
Madison receives 6.94%, City of Rutledge receives .61%, City of Bostwick receives .23% and
the City of Buckhead .14%. The County’s SPLOST V projects include a new public
safety/detention center, road and bridge improvements, library facility improvements, water
system equipment and improvements, purchase of sanitation equipment and improvement of
solid waste facility and the purchase of the a county administrative building. The City of
Madison has designated projects for road and bridge improvements, a public works building,
renovation to City Hall and park improvements. The City of Rutledge has designated funds for
water and sewer improvements. The City of Bostwick will improve roads and bridges, city hall
improvements and water system improvements and equipment. The City of Buckhead will
improve the fire station and roads and bridges.
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Revenues by Source
Fund Level - Governmental

Fines & Forfeitures 5% |1% Other
\

Charges for Services 8%

Intergovernmental 4%
License & Permits 1%

80% Taxes

Expenditures in the governmental funds were $28,955,140, up $3,196,491 from FY 20009.
Expenditures for the General Fund of $13,095,782 were up $1,025,302. The General fund
transferred $425,000 to Solid Waste fund to subsidize operations this year. The County
expenditures in SPLOST funds of $14,959,636 were $3.297,581 more than prior year due to the
timing of expenditures. Of the SPLOST expenditures, $11,394,869 of this was for capital outlay
on planned projects and $1,846,763 was for debt service payments on the jail bonds. The
remaining $1,718,004 is spread over multiple departments, primarily for the purpose of
infrastructure repaving which is expensed.

In FY 2010, Morgan County’s Fund balance of all governmental funds was 40% of revenues. At
year end, the Fund Balance in the General Fund was 46% of general fund revenues.

Proprietary funds. The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Beginning in FY 2003, Morgan County has reported the Solid Waste fund as a proprietary fund.
This change has allowed users of the financial statements to analyze the County’s Solid Waste
Department as a business-like activity and focus attention on the cost of providing services.

In FY 2010, Morgan County’s Solid Waste Facility reported a loss of $241,663. Operating
revenues decreased by $53,871 from FY 2009. Of the total decrease in operating revenue,
recycling and transfer fees decreased $53,815. The Solid Waste Fund on its own doesn’t generate
sufficient revenues to fund operations; it relies on a subsidy from the General Fund. In fiscal year
2010 transfers between funds were made with a more conservative approach by just meeting the
needed cash flow of the Solid Waste Fund. This change ensured the Solid Waste Fund wasn’t
overfunded and allowed the General Fund to keep more of its cash longer thereby improving its
cash flow. The reduction in transfers accounts for $187.792 of the reported loss. The transfer in
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for the fiscal year 2009 was $878,485 compared to the fiscal year 2010 transfer of $425,000.

Expenses decreased $218,873 from fiscal year 2009, with approximately $6,400 of that decrease
being depreciation expense. Disposal Fee expense decreased by $67,116 from fiscal year 2009
due to a reduction in tonnage hauled. Other areas with notable decreases were salaries and benefit
a decrease of $83,310 from fiscal year 2009 and other services and charges a decrease of $49,895
from fiscal year 2009.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. Morgan County’s Government-wide investment in capital assets at June 30, 2010
was $56,963,990, net of accumulated depreciation and related debt. This investment, which
includes land, buildings, roads, bridges, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles,
is discussed in Note 5.

Government-wide additions in FY 2010 were $- million. Major capital asset activities in FY
2010 were:

In Governmental Activities:

) Renovation continued on a Public Safety Complex to house the Sheriff, Jail, E911
Center, and Emergency Management at a cost of $11,417,501.

. A Sheriff's patrol car with a cost of approximately $33,000 was purchased.

. Various office furniture and fixtures for the Clerk of the Superior Court Office with a
cost of approximately $3,700 was purchased.

o A burn building for the Fire Department with a cost of approximately $5,100 was
purchased. This cost was shared with the City of Madison.

Long-term debt. At June 30, 2010, Morgan County had outstanding debt of $18,671,619. Of
this amount $266,518 is from various capital leases, $18,137,015 is from contracts payable, and
$268,086 is from compensated absences payable. See note 6, for more details. Payments of
$76,360 were made on capital leases. Payments of $1,068,452 were made on contracts payable.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Differences between the original budget, the final budget and actual results for the General Fund
are shown on pages 44 and 45.

The reasons for major changes to the original budget are as follows:

Each year, Morgan County adopts the General Fund budget in June based on a preliminary

digest. The millage rate is set in September when the digest is finalized by the Georgia

Department of Revenue. The final, amended budget was up $95,146. The budget increase is a

result of the County being awarded the Assistance to Rural Law Enforcement to Combat Crime

and Drugs Program grant administered by the U.S. Department of Justice. The grant award was
XV1



made September 2009 after the fiscal year 2010 budget was adopted. These funds are provided
through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA). The total grant award
was $434,964 to fund six detention deputy positions in the new public safety facility for a period
of two years. At the end of the grant period, the County is obligated to continue funding of the
six detention deputy positions for a one year period. The budget increase resulting from the grant
did not impact fund balance as there is an offsetting increase in intergovernmental revenues.

Fines and forfeitures were increased by 20% due to forfeited cash bonds from drug related
Superior Court cases. These monies are not considered reoccurring revenues and as such are not
budgeted annually.

Charges for services revenues increased 8%. This increase is a result of the County receiving
reimbursement for prior years and current year expenditures through an agreement with the
Morgan County Board of Education for school resource officers.

Contingency funds were budgeted in the Financial Administration Department. These funds
were used to cover additional expenditures in other departments as needed.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND THE 2011 BUDGET

The County continues to face challenges during these economic times with declining revenues
and controlling costs to meet the expectations for and use of services provided to citizens. Steps
were taken to reduce expenditures which allowed the County to end fiscal year 2010 with a
moderate fund balance.

The economic outlook for 2011 is stable considering the County maintained a careful and
conservative approach to the preparation of the 2011 budget. The fiscal year 2011 annual budget
for the general fund is $14,293,684; this is a decrease of 1.5% from the final amended 2010
budget.

Most of the County’s revenue sources for fiscal year 2011 are expected to struggle to achieve last
year’s levels. The 2011 budget was adopted assuming a millage rate of 8.40. Although this rate is
up .222 mills from the 2009 millage rate of 8.178 most taxpayers aren’t expected see an increase
in their property tax bills due to the declining trend in assessed property values. It would take a
millage rate set at 9.001 in order for the County to realize the same level of property tax revenue
as the previous year.

The County actively searches for funding sources and has been successful in obtaining various
grants in the area of public safety and energy efficiency and conservation. Through the energy
efficiency and conservation block grant the County anticipates reducing future energy costs. With
this grant being shared with the City of Madison and the Board of Education, benefits are
expected to reach county-wide.

In order to reduce fiscal year 2011 expenditures, short-term solutions of deferring capital
projects, reducing the retirement contribution, and reducing travel and training cost were
implemented. Other reductions in expenditures came from changes in personnel where vacant
positions were eliminated, overtime was reduced through revised scheduling, and work hours and
salary reductions were implemented.
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The newly completed public safety complex will be operational for its first full year in fiscal year
2011. The full year operational cost of this facility was the single largest driver for increased
expenditures for fiscal year 2011. Grant funding is in place to fund six detention deputy positions
for a period of two years. However, at the end of the grant period, the County is obligated to
continue funding of these positions for a one year period.

The County Manager is currently pursuing agreements with the U.S. Marshals Service, U.S.
Immigration and Customs Enforcement, and other jurisdictions for housing inmates. Rates for
housing these inmates can range from $50 to $100 per day per inmate, these revenues would be a
significant contribution to offsetting operational costs of the public safety facility. Additionally,
a recently signed agreement for the occupation of underutilized space in the public safety facility
is expected to generate rental revenue.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Morgan County’s finances for
all those interested. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to the Morgan County Commissioners
Office, PO Box 168, Madison, Georgia 30650.
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ASSETS
Cash

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Intemal balances
Inventories
Prepaid tems
Investment in joint venture
Restricted assets;
Cash
Non-current asscts:
Receivables
Deferred charges
Net pension obligation

Capital asscts:
Capital asscts not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated
Less: accumulated depreciation
Capital assets, net of depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Other accrued items
Due to other governments
Short-term debt payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Compensated absences payable
Accrued landfill closure 7 postclosure
Notes payable
Capital leases payable
Revenue bonds payable
Contracts payable
Duc in more than one year
Compensated absences payable
Accrued landfill closure / postclosure
Notes payable
Capital leases payable
Revenue bonds payable
Contracts payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital outlay projects
Public safcty programs
Public health and welfare
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2010

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL ~ BUSINESS-TYPE TOTAL COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES UNITS
$ 6713999 § 104299 § 6818298 $ 1.035,337
1604211 32,596 1.836.807 1,671,014
24565 (24.565) - .
25,390 . 25390 364,000
$6,720 $6.720 53,000
1.258,211 1.258.211
189 - 189 402,000
. 257.000
215,822 - 215,822 $0.000
195,263 195.263 -
9,789,321 284,564 10,074,185 699,000
96,891,575 1.011,872 97,903,447 7444773
(31.749.124) (860.985) (32.610.109) (5.122.071)
74.931.772 435751 75.367.523 3.021.702
§5,256.142 548.081 85.804.223 6.853.053
78,925 43,240 122.165 398,985
147,374 . 147,374 963,000
31,697 - 31,697 -
- . - 399,000
160,852 1776 168,628 7.868
28,315 28315 .
. . 412,000
90,313 90,313 102,000
. ; . 75,000
1.210.983 . 1210983 .
107.234 5,184 112418 33879
300,912 300,912 -
. . 60,000
176,205 . 176,205 381,000
. . - 635,000
16,926,032 - 16.926.032 .
18,929,613 385427 19.315.042 3.467.732
56,528.239 435,751 56.963.990 1.436,702
- - 245,000
568,311 568,311 .
448,359 - 448,359 .
17.404 . 17,404 313473
8.764.214 (273.097) 8491117 1.391.146
$ 66326527 S 162653 S ___ 66489181 § 3.386.321

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

«NET (EXPENSE) AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS....

werinnenre PROGRAM REVENUES..cccvveeere. e PRIMARY GOVERNMENT.
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government $ 3.351,744 S 583,893 § 363 S 426492 $ (2.724846) S - S (2.724.846) S .
Judicial 1,184,957 1,039,309 3.668 - (141,980) - (141,980) -
Public safety 5,307,303 646,449 255,566 7,690 (4,397,598) - (4,397,598) .
Public works 4,855,857 . 467,271 269,985 (4.118,601) - (4,118,601) -
Public health and welfare 1,659,014 49,433 283,265 . (1.326.316) - (1,326.316)
Recreation and culture 1,219,227 262,664 11,030 - (945,533) - (945.533)
Housing and developmen 661,589 149,986 . - (511,603) - (511,603) -
Interest 830,572 - - - (830,572) - (830,572) -
Total Governmental Activitics 19,070,263 2,731,734 1,021,163 320,317 {14.997.049) - (14,997.049) -
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Solid waste/recycling 954,279 287.163 - - - (667.116) (667,116) -
Total Business-Type Activities 954279 287.163 - : - (667.116) (667,116) -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - § (20,024,542) S 35018.897 S 1021163 § 320& (14,997.049) (667.116) (15.664.165)
COMPONENT UNITS
Health Department $ 501442 § 173089 S 385,130 S - - - - 56,777
Hospital Authority 14,036 000 12.146.000 741.000 208,000 - : - (941.000)
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS S 14537442 S 12,319.089 S 1,126,130 S 208 000 - - . (884,223)
GENERAL REVENUES
Property taxes 8,312,443 - 8,312,443
Sales taxes 5963470 B 5963470
Insurance premium taxes S18.862 - 518,862
Real estate recording taxes 116,810 - 116,810
Other taxcs 133,615 - 133,615
Total 1axes 15,045,200 . 15,045,200 -
Unrestricted investment eammings 92,485 454 92,939 16,384
Gain on sale of capital assets 45,037 - 45,037 -
TRANSFERS (425,000) 425.000 . :
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 14,787,722 425,454 15,183.176 16,384
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (239.327) (241,662) (480,989) {867,839)
NET ASSETS, Beginning 6,505 854 404.316 66.970,170 4,254 160
NET ASSETS, Ending $ 66!326 527  § 162,658 $ 66489181 S 1,33@%

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this statement



ASSETS
Cash
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Inventories
Restricted assets:
Cash
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Other accrued items
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCES
Reserved:
Prepaid expenditure
Capital outlay projects
Unreserved, undesignated:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
TOTAL FUND BALANCES
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2010
OTHER
NONMAJOR TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SPLOST FUNDS FUNDS
3 6,105,114 $ 150,940 $ 457945 § 6,713,999
1,294,118 455,446 54,648 1,804,212
51,638 - - 51,638
86,720 - - 86,720
25,390 - - 25,390
- 189 - 189
3 7.562.980 § 606,575 3 512,593 3 8.682.148
$ 63,861 3 - $ 15063 $ 78,924
147,374 - - 147,374
- 31,697 - 31,697
- 6.567 20,506 27,073
882.670 - - 882.670
1,093,905 38,264 35,569 1,167,738
86.720 - - 86.720
- 568,311 - 568,311
6,382,355 - - 6,382,355
- - 477,024 477.024
6,469,075 568.311 477,024 7.514.410
S 7.562.980 S 606,575 3 512,593 S 8.682,148

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2010

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds (page 3) $ 7.514,410

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net asscts is different because:

Capital assets used in the governmental activitics are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 74,931,772

Some assets are not available in the current period and therefore arc not reported in the

funds.
Net pension obligation 195,263
Investment in joint venture 1,258,211
Deferred charge for issuance cost 215,822 1,669,296

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are reported as deferred revenues in the funds.

Property Taxes 732,320
Fines 150,350
882,670
Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Compensated absences (268,086)
Capital leases (266,518)
Contracts payable (18.137,015)
(18,671,619)
Rounding (@)
Total net assets of governmental activitics (page 1) S 66,326,527

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

OTHER
NONMAJOR TOTAL
CAPITAL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUES GENERAL SPLOST PROJECTS FUNDS FUNDS
Taxcs $ 11465747 § 3,444,860 S - $ 36,015 S 14,946,628
Licenses and permits 101,929 - . - 101,929
Intergovernmental 390,345 312,627 - 117.690 820.662
Fines and forfeitures 771061 - - 245,507 1.016,568
Charges for services 1,207,090 - - 311,014 1,518,104
Contributions and donations 35810 - - 12,026 47,836
Investment income 78,097 11,593 - 2,19 92,484
Miscellancous 35,202 300 - 2,256 37,758
TOTAL REVENUES 14.085.281 3.769,386 - 727.302 18.581.969
EXPENDITURES
Current Expenditures
Cieneral government 2985485 140 - - 2.985.625
Judicial 1,136,456 - - 50,664 1,187,120
Public safety 4,175,227 - - 635,341 4.810.568
Public works 1,410,296 1,145,573 . - 2,555.869
Public health and welfare 1,613,427 - . 2916 1.616,343
Recreation and culture 885,626 300,000 . . 1,185,626
Housing and development 605,095 - - 21,053 626,148
Intergovernmental - 272,291 - . 272,291
Capital outlay 80,089 11,394,869 - 189,748 11,664,706
Debt service
Principal 139811 1,005,000 - . 1,144,811
Interest 64,270 841.763 - - 906.033
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13.095.782 14.959.636 - 899,722 28.955.140
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 989.499 (11,150.250) - (172.420) (10.373,171)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of county property 25,284 - - 19,753 45,037
Transfers in 462,906 - - 79,694 542,600
Transfers out (425,000) - (6.926) (535.674) (967,600)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 63.190 - (6.926) (436.227) (379.963)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1,052,689 (11,190,250) (6.926) (608.647) (10,753,134)
FUND BALANCES, Beginning of year 5.416,386 11,758.561 6,926 1,085,671 18,267,544
FUND BALANCES. End of year S 6469075 S 568311 S - S 477,024 § 2,514,410

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Net change in fund balances (page 5)
Amounts reported for governmental activitics in the statement of uctivitics are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as cxpenditures. However, in the statement of” activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital outiays
Depreciation expense

In the statement of activities, only the gain‘loss on the sale of various capital assets is reported, whereas in the governmental
funds. the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net assets differs from the change in fund
balance by the net book value of the capital asscts sold.

Net book value of capital asscts sold

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are aot
reported as revenues in the funds.

Property taxes

Donated asscts

Fines

Investment in joint venture

Revenues reported in the funds that relate to prior years are not reported as revenue in the statement of activitics

Propenty taxcs
Investment in joint venture
Fines

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized for
transactions that are not normally paid with expendable available financial resources.  In the statement of activitics,
however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and  liabilities are reported regardless of when financial
resources are available. In addition, interest on long-term debt s not recognized under the modified accrual basis of
accounting until due, rather than as it accrues. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, where as these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This adjustment combines the net change of two balances.

Principal payments on long-term debt
Amontization of bond premium, discounts and issuance cost

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and. therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensaied absences, current year
Compensated absences, prior year

Net pension obligation is not available during the current period and therefore is not reported in the funds.
Beginning of ycar
End of year

Rounding

Changes in net assets of governmental activitics (page 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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11,664,706

—(2.989.004)

(27.166)

732,320
472,982
150,350
1.258.211

(633,748)
(1,193,296)

(157.889)

1,144.811
75,460

(268,086)
258459

195,263

(169.566)

S (10,753.139)

8,675,702

(27.166)

2,613,863

(1,984,933)

1,220,271

(9.627)

25,697

1

$ (239.327)
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SOLID WASTE
DISPOSAL
OPERATING REVENUES FACILITY
Recycling and transfer fees $ 287,107
Charges for services-other 56
Total Operating Revenucs 287,163
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 310,163
Other services and charges 105,714
Landfill closure/postclosure costs (9.616)
Depreciation 62,518
Waste disposal fees 463,107
Professional fees 3,181
Repairs and maintenance 19,213
Total Operating Expenses 954,280
OPERATING INCOME (1.OSS) (667.117)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment eamnings 454
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 454
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS (666,663)
Transfer in 425,000
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (241,663)
TOTAL NET ASSETS, Beginning of year 404,317
TOTAL NET ASSETS, End of ycar $ 162,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS
SOLID WASTE
DISPOSAL
FACILITY

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customer $ 280,034

Payments to supplicrs (592,761)

Payments to employees (309.204)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (621.931)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers in 425.000
Net Cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities 425,000
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment camings 454

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 454
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (196,477)
CASH, Beginning of year 300,776
CASH, End of year $ 104299

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ (667,117)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation 62,518
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (7,129)
Prepaid expenses 2,297
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 1,108
Compensated absences 959
Accrued landfill costs (32,969)
Due 1o other funds 18.452
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (621,931)

—————— ———3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
9
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA

COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2010
HEALTH HOSPITAL
ASSETS DEPARTMENT AUTHORITY TOTAL
Cash $ 380,337 8 655,000 § 1,035,337
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 37,014 1,634,000 1,671,014
Inventories - 364,000 364,000
Prepaid items - 53,000 53,000
Restricted assets:
Cash - 402,000 402,000
Non-current assets:
Receivables - 257,000 257,000
Deferred charges - 50,000 50,000
Capital assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated - 699,000 699,000
Capital assets being depreciated 43,773 7,401,000 7,444,773
Less: accumulated depreciation (37.071) (5,085,000) (5.122,071)
Capital assets, net of depreciation 6.702 3,015,000 3,021,702
TOTAL ASSETS 424,053 6,430,000 6,854,053
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,985 397,000 398,985
Other accrued items - 963,000 963,000
Short-term debt payable - 399,000 399,000
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one yecar
Compensated absences payable 7,868 - 7,868
Notes payable - 412,000 412,000
Capital leases payable - 102,000 102,000
Revenue bonds payable - 75,000 75,000
Due in more than one year
Compensated absences payable 33.879 - 33,879
Notes payable - 60,000 60,000
Capital leases payable - 381,000 381,000
Revenue bonds payable - 635,000 635,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 43,732 3.424.000 3,467,732
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,702 1,430,000 1,436,702
Restricted for:
Debt service 245,000 245,000
Public health and welfare 175.473 138,000 313,473
Unrestricted 198,146 1,193,000 1,391,146
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 380321 § 3,006,000 $ 3,386,321

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
12
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of
the government's accounting policies are described below.

(A) REPORTING ENTITY

The government is a political subdivision of the State of Georgia governed by an clected five-
member commission. In addition, there are four Constitutional Officers; the Tax Commissioner,
Probate Court Judge, Sheriff, and Clerk of Superior Court. The Constitutional Officers are
clected county wide. The Board of County Commissioners budgets and approves all funding
used by the separate Constitutional Officers. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, these financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Each discretely presented
component unit is reported in a scparate column in the combined financial statements to
emphasize it is legally separate from the government. Each discretely presented component unit
has a June 30 year-end.

Brief descriptions of discretely presented component units follow:

MORGAN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY: The hospital authority owns and
operates a twenty bed acute care facility and a twenty-one bed hospital-based skilled
nursing unit. The County appoints all the members of the seven-member board that
governs the hospital authority. The hospital authority is fiscally dependent on the County
since the County provides a subsidy which allows the Authority to remain solvent and the
County guarantees the Authority’s debt. During 2010, the County transferred $887,250
to the hospital authority. The hospital authority is presented as a proprietary fund type.

MORGAN COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT: The health department is charged with
determining the health needs and resources of its jurisdiction, developing programs,
activities, and facilitics responsive to those needs, and enforcing all laws related to health
matters unless they fall under the jurisdiction of other agencies. The health department is
governed by the Morgan County Board of Health (Board). The Board includes seven
members representing government, health professions, and the needy. The County
appoints the voting majority of the board. Additionally, the health department is fiscally
dependent on the County since it must have its budget approved by the County. During
2010, the County transferred $180,339 to the health department. The health department
is presented as a governmental fund type.




MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

Complete financial statements for cach of the individual component units may be obtained at the
entity's administrative offices.

Morgan County Health Department Morgan County Hospital Authority
259 North Second Street 1077 South Main Street
Madison, Georgia 30650-1317 Madison, Georgia 30650-2073

(B) GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in nct assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountablc.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct cxpenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprictary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

(C) MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

15



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2010

The government-widce financial statements arc reported using the cconomic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statement (fiduciary funds use the economic resources mcasurement focus to
indicate that agency funds have no measurement focus.) Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thercafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers property taxes as available if they are
collected by the end of the current fiscal year. Fines are considered available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period for which they are levied. Other revenues
susceptible 1o accrual are considered available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of
the current fiscal period for which they are imposed. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due.

Property taxcs, sales tax, franchise taxes, fines, charges for services, and interest associated with
the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for

in another fund.

The SPLOST Capital Projects Fund accounts for funds received from a local 1% sales
tax reserved for construction of various capital projects.

The government reports the following major proprictary funds:

The Solid Waste Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities of the County’s solid waste
disposal and recycling programs.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:
Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an

agent on behalf of others.
16



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

Private-purpose trust funds account for assets held by the government under the terms of
a formal trust agreement and are accounted for on the flow of economic resources
measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. The Braswell Fund, a
testamentary trust fund, is the private-purpose trust fund. The fund is restricted to the use
of educating orphaned children who reside in the County.

Agency funds are custodial in naturc and do not represent results of operations or have a
measurcment focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting. These funds are used to account for assets that the Tax Commissioner, Clerk
of Court, Probate Court, Magistrate Court, and Sheriff holds for others in an agency
capacity.

Effective at the beginning of the current fiscal year, it was determined that certain funds were no
longer necessary to be kept as scparate funds. The Parks and Recreation, Senior Center, and
Transit Special Revenue funds and Capital Projects major fund were closed into the General
fund by a transfer out. Those activities are now included in the General Fund. The Jail, Youth
Enrichment, and Drug Abuse, Trcatment, and Education Special Revenue funds were combined
into a new fund by a transfer out, the Special Revenue Fund which is a non-major special
revenue fund. Budgetary comparison schedules are not required for those funds closed.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprictary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same
limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are interfund services provided and used are
not climinated in the process of consolidation. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues for the Solid Waste enterprise fund are charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for the Solid Waste enterprise fund include the cost of
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and cxpenses.
17



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(D) ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY
L Deposits and Investmments

The government’s cash and cash cquivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits
and short-term investments with original maturities of threc months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Investments are recorded as fair value based on quoted market prices as of the balance sheet
date. Increases or decreases in fair value during the year are recognized as part of investment
income.

2. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year arc referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other
funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available
for appropriation and are not expendable, available financial resources.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance of uncollectibles.

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The 2009 taxes were
levied October 20, 2009, and were due 60 days after issuance. Interest and penalties are assessed

on taxes not paid by this date. The taxes are subject to licn after March 20, 2010.

The County’s property taxes were levied on the assessed values of all real and personal property
including mobile homes and motor vehicles located in the County.

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items
Inventories, consisting of expendable supplies, not held for resale are valued at cost using the

first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

18



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.c. roads,
bridges, sidewalks, culverts, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental
activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
County as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess
of three years. Roads, bridges and culverts are defined by the County as projects with an
individual cost of $5,000 or more. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. Roads, bridges and culverts acquired prior to July 1, 2002
have been reported.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 40
Building improvements 10-25
Machinery and Equipment 5-10
Vehicles 5
Infrastructure 10-50
Land improvements 10-20
5. Compensated Absences

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Governmental Accounting
Standards No. 16, “Accounting for Compensated Absences,” no liability is reported for unpaid
accumulated sick leave because the benefits are paid only upon illness of an employee, and the
amount of such payments cannot be reasonably estimated. All vacation pay is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements. Vacation pay that is
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as
expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Upon retirement,
unused vacation and sick leave will be included in years of service for benefit calculation
purposes. At the end of each calendar year unused vacation time above 240 hours and unused
sick time above 480 hours is rolled over to credit the years of scrvice for retirement purposes.

19



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

6. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

7. Fund Equity/Net Assets

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or arc legally restricted by outside parties for use
for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that
are subject to change. The government-wide statement of net assets reports $1,034,074 of
restricted net assets, of which $906,718 is restricted by enabling legislation.

8. Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

The "invested in capital assets, net of related debt” reported on the government-wide statement
of net assets as of June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Activities Activities
Cost of capital assets $ 106,680,896 $ 1,296,736
Less accumulated depreciation (31,749,124) (860,985)
Book value 74,931,772 435,751
Less capital related debt (18,403,533) -
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 56,528,239 $ 435,751

9. Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

(A) BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles.

20



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund and all special revenue funds.

Project-length budgets arc adopted for capital projects funds. All annual appropriations lapse at
fiscal year end.

All agencies of the government submit requests for appropriation to the County's manager so that
a budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, function and activity and line item,
and includes information on the past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations
for the next fiscal year.

The proposed budget is presented 10 the government’s Board of Commissioners for review. The
government’s Board of Commissioners holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or
change appropriations, but may not change the form of the budget. Any changes in the budget
must be within the revenues and reserves estimated as available by the County's manager or the
revenue estimates must be changed by an affirmative vote of a majority of the government’s
Board of Commissioners.

The County manager may amend the line item budget within a department’s appropriation.
However, expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level.
The legal level of budgetary control is at the department level within individual funds.

During the year, the Board of Commissioners authorized amendments to include appropriations
for some activities that were not originally budgeted and to reclassify certain character and
functional expenditures.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The County's investments are held in a private purpose trust fund known as the Braswell
Fiduciary Fund and held as cash equivalents in the SPLOST fund. Investments are carried at fair
value. Unrealized gain is recognized as income.

Primary Government

Custodial credit risk - deposits. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, that in the
event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be rcturncd. The County’s policies
permit it to exceed the FDIC insured limit in making deposits in commercial banks and savings
and loans institutions if the funds are otherwise adequately secured. As of June 30, 2010, all
deposits of the County were insured or collateralized.

State statutes require collateral pledged in the amount of 110% of deposits. Depositories may
secure deposits of public funds using the dedicated method or the pooled method as described
below.

. Under the dedicated method, a depository shall secure the deposits of each of its public
depositors scparately.



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

. Under the pooled method, a depository shall secure deposits of public bodies which have
deposits with it through a pool of collateral established by the depository with a custodian for the
benefit of public bodies having deposits with such depository as sct forth in code Section 45-8-
13.1.

The County utilized both methods to secure its deposits of public funds.

Custodial credit risk - investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

Interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in intcrest ratcs may adversely affect
an investment's fair value. Since the price of a bond fluctuates with market interest rates, the risk
that an investor faces is that the price of a bond held in a portfolio will decline if market interest
rates rise. Morgan County docs not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturitics as a means of managing its cxposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.

Credit Risk. State statutes authorize the government to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury
and of its agencies and instrumentalities; bonds or certificates of indebtedness of this state or of
other states and of its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposits of banks insured by
FDIC; the State of Georgia Local Government Investment Pool; repurchase agreements; bonds,
debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness of any solvent corporation of the United
States government. Morgan County does not have an investment policy that would further limit
these investment choices.

Concentration of credit risk. Morgan County places no limit on the amount it may invest in any
one issuer.

Fiduciary Fund

Interest rate risk. The Braswell Fiduciary Fund does not have a formal investment policy that
limits investment maturitics as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk. The Braswell fund is authorized to invest in securities in accordance with the will
that established the fund. The Braswell Fiduciary Fund has no investment policy that would
further limit its investment choices. At June 30, 2010, the ratings of its investments are shown
above.

Conce:_:tration of credit risk. The Braswell Fiduciary Fund places no limit on the amount it may
invest in any one issuer. As of June 30, 2010, the Braswell Fiduciary Fund held 6% of the total
investments in common stocks of both the Atlanta Gas Company and the Southern Company.

[
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

Custodial credit risk - investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its

investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

As of June 30, 2010, the Braswell Fiduciary Fund had the following investments:

Weighted
Average
Rating Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value Rating Agency (Ycars)
Common Stocks $ 41,600 n/a n/a n/a
Mutual Funds 172,693 n/a n/a n/a
Subtotal Equity Securities 214,293
Mutual Fund Dcbt Securities 34.104 BB Morningstar 10.30
Total Investments $_248.397

The goal of the Braswell Fiduciary Fund in investing is to obtain a rcasonable return on
investments with a minimum exposure to potential loss of capital due to market fluctuations.

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the County’s individual major funds, nonmajor governmental
funds in the aggregate, and enterprise fund including the applicable allowances for uncollectible
accounts, are as follows:

Nonmajor
General Governmental  Enterprise Fund
Fund SPLOST Funds Solid Waste

Reccivables:

Property Taxes $ 732,320 $ - $ - $ -

Fines 3,085,285 - - -

Accounts 34,267 - 54,648 32,596

Intergovernmental 351,133 455,446 - -
Total Gross Receivables 4,203,005 455,446 54,648 32,596
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles (2,908.887) - - -
Total Net Receivables §_1.294.118 $_ 455446 $ 54648 $_ 3259

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds
also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet
earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and
unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
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June 30, 2010
UNAVAILABLE UNEARNED TOTAL
Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) S 732,320 S - $ 732,320
Probation Fines (General Fund) 150,350 - 150,350
Total deferred/unearned revenue for governmental funds § 882,670 S - $ 882,670

Property taxes receivable at June 30, 2010, consist of the following:

DIGEST GENERAL
YEAR FUND
20100 $ 12,667
2009 437,605
2008 107,665
2007 28,108
2006 59,665
2005 45918
2004 4,615
2003 9,726
2002 5,983
200t 2,425
2000 1,931
1999 3,268
1998 1,418
1997 9,057
1996 328
1995 1,918
1994 4
1993 8
1992 11
Total $__732.320

(1) 2010 only consists of taxes due on mobile homes. Taxes on real and personal property are not levied until after
fiscal year end. Therefore, they are not included.

Receivables as of year-end for the County’s component units, including the applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Health Hospital
Department Authority
Receivables:

Accounts $ 25970 $ 2,574,000
Intergovernmental 11.044 52.000
Total Gross Receivables 37,014 2,626,000
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles - (992.000)
Total Net Receivables $_37014 $_ 1.634.000
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NOTE S - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning

Halance
Governmental Activities:
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land and improvements $ 9537428
Construction in progress §.341.904

Total non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable Assets:

Land improvements 515,820
Buildings and improvements 14,388,238
Machinery and equipment 3,198,960
Vehicles 5,072,943
Infrastructure 53.603.890
Total depreciable capital assets 76.779.851
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land improvements 223419
Buildings and improvements 3,743,605
Machinery and equipment 1.930.387
Vehicles 3,293,324
Infrastructure _19.658.194
Tatal accumulated depreciation 28848929
Total depreciable capital assets, net 47,930,922

Governmental activities capital assets, net S

17.879.332

63810254

Ending

Additions Retirements Transfers Balance
3 938,609 s (1,647) $ . $ 9634390
11,466,092 - (19.653.065) 154,931
11.564.70] (1,647 (19.653.065) 9.789.321
- - 515,820
- - 19,555,138 33,943,376
125,604 . 97,927 3,422,551
58.662 (114.328) n 5.017,276
388,662 - - 53.992.852
572,987 (114.328) 19.653.064 96,891,575
28282 - - 251,701
448,081 - 4,191,686
270,603 - - 2,200,990
346,195 (88.809) - 3,550,710
1.895.843 - - 21,554,037
2,989,004 (R8.809) - 31,749,124
(2416017) (25.519) 19.653.064 65142451
$__9.148 684 S&) S (1) $_74931.772

Additions to governmental activities capital assets for fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 consist of

the following:

Capital Outlay
Donated assets
Total

Non-depreciable capital assets additions
Depreciable capital assets additions
Total

$ 11,664,706
472,982
$§ 12,137,688
$ 11,564,701
572,987
$ 12,137,688
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June 30, 2010
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions  Retirements  Transfers Balance
Business-type Activities:
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land and improvements $ 284864 § - $ - $ - S 284,864
Depreciable Assets:
Land improvements 55,473 - - - 55,473
Buildings and improvements 119,724 - - - 119,724
Machinery and equipment 494,441 - - - 494,441
Vehicles 342,234 - - - 342,234
Total depreciable capital assets 1.011.872 - - - 1,011.872
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land improvements 28,124 2,774 - - 30,898
Buildings 73,330 2,993 - - 76,323
Equipment 416,625 31,242 - - 447,867
Vehicles 280,388 25,509 - - 305.897
Total accumulated depreciation 798.467 62518 - - 860.985
Total depreciable capital assets, net 213,405 (62.518) - : 150.887

Business-type activities capital assets, net $__ 498269 $_ (62.518) $

.
174 4
[

$__435.751

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Gencral Government S 362,922
Public Safety 486,198
Public Works 2,026,245
Public Health and Welfare 44,697
Recreation and Culture 32,942
Housing and Development 35,999
Rounding 1
Total depreciation expense-governmental activities §___2.989.004

Business-type Activities:
Solid Waste ) 62518

—_——i

The County has authorized construction projects. The remaining costs are split between the
portion of the contracts that have been entered into for which the work had not been done prior
to June 30, 2010 and the remainder of the authorized project expenditure for which contracts

have not been entered into as of year end. The source of financing for the remaining project cost
is noted below:
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Project Expended Contracts in Authorized
Authorization To Date Progress Not Obligated Sources
Governmental Activities:
Public Safety Complex - E911 $ 300,000 S 154931 S - S 145.069 SPLOST V
Total 3 300,000 $ 154931 § - ) 145,069

Health Department Discretely Presented Component Unit

Activity for the Health Department for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Governmental Activities:
Depreciable Assets:
Machinery and equipment $ 38,768 S - $ 5005 S 43,773
Less Accumulated Depreciation (36.670) - (401) (37.071)
Capital Asscts, net $ 2,098 $ - 3 4604 $ 6.702

Hospital Authority Discretely Presented Component Unit

Activity for the Hospital Authority for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Governmental Activities:
Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land $ 105,000 S - S - S 105,000
Construction in progress 416,000 416,000 (238.000) 594,000
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 521,000 416,000 (238.000) 699.000
Depreciable Assets:
Land improvements 61,000 - - 61,000
Buildings and improvements 3,432,000 - 123,000 3,555,000
Equipment 3.175.000 - 610.000 3.785.000
Total Depreciable assets 6.668.000 - 733.000 7.401.060
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land improvements (59,000) - (2,000) (61,000)
Buildings and improvements (2,463,000) - (70,000) (2,533,000)
Equipment (2.166.000) - (325.000) (2.491.000)
Total accumulated depreciation (4.688.000) - (397.000) _ (5.085.000)
Total depreciable capital assets, net 1.980.,000 - 336.000 2,316.000
Capital Assets, net S_2501.000 S__416000 S__98000 S_3015000
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NOTE 6 - LONG TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Duc Within Due After
Balange Additions Reductions Balance One Year One Year
Governmental Activities:
Capnal leases ) 342,878 S - $ (76,360) S 266,518 S 90,313 $ 176,205
Contracls payable 18,481,643 - (1,068,452) 17,413,191 1,108,614 16,304,577
Plus: Original issu¢ Premiums 831,343 - (107.519) 723,824 102,369 621,455
Subtotal Contracts Payable 19,312,986 - (1.175971) 18.137.015 1,210,983 16,926.032
Compensated absences 258.459 250.977 (241.350) 268,086 160,852 107,234
Governmental activitics long-term liabilities $._19914.323 $ 250977 $_ (1493.681) §_18671,619 S__1462,148 §_17,200.47]
Business-type Activities:
Compensated absences S 12,001 § 8451 § (7.492) S 12960 S 7,776 § 5,184
Landfill closure/posticlosure 362,196 (9.616) (23,353) 329227 28315 300912
Business-lype activities long-tenm liabilities $ 374,197 § (1,165) $ (30.843) S 342187 5 36,091 $ 306.096

Capital Leases

The County leases certain land and facilities under non-cancelable capital leases. The leases
relate to the DFACS/Health Department building. Ownership of the related assets will be
transferred to the County at the end of the lease terms. The assets acquired through capital leases
are as follows:
Governmental
Activities

Buildings and improvements $ 885,714
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (287.857)
Total $ 597.857
The County entered into a capital lease agreement in 1997 with Wachovia Bank to finance the

construction of a DFACS building. The lease term is one year with fourteen one-year renewable
lease terms.

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2010, were as follows:

Governmental

Year Ending June 30, Activities

2011 $ 104,865

2012 104,865

2013 82.146

Total minimum lease payments 291,876
Less: amount representing interest (6.45%) (25.358)
Present value of minimum lease payments A 266.518
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Contracts payable

During 2000, the County entercd into an intergovernmental contract with the Development
Authority of Walton County to acquire land for an industrial park and issue the “Development
Authority of Walton County (Georgia) Industrial Park Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, Series
1998” in order to finance the acquisition of land for the Industrial Park Project. The total amount
of this issue is $7,500,000. Morgan County’s share of the debt was 15%, or $1,125,000. During
2001, this revenuc bond anticipation note was replaced by a revenue bond issued by the Joint
Development Authority of Jasper County, Morgan County, Newton County, and Walton County
in the amount of $9,000,000. Morgan County’s share of the debt is 15%. The outstanding
balance of this debt at June 30, 2010 is $6,000,000 with Morgan County’s share being $900,000.

The bonds are variable rate demand bonds. A common featurc of such bonds is that bondholders
have the right to tender their bonds back for purchase each week for any reason. Should the
Remarketing Agent be unable to find new buyers for any tendered bonds, a bank is obligated to
purchase the bonds under a Liquidity Facility. Should that happen, the bonds become "Bank
Bonds" with an interest rate equal to the greater of prime rate or Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%
per annum. In addition, the fees for providing the Liquidity Facility would increase from
0.195% per annum to 0.440% per annum; also, the repayment of principal would be accelerated
on a five year schedule commencing with the next principal payment.

Just after June 30, 2008, the rating for the bond issucr for the Joint Development Authority of
Jasper County, Morgan County, Newton County, and Walton County, (JDA) Series 2001 bonds
was downgraded from a triple-A rating. As a result, the Remarketing Agent was unable to find
new investors and the Bank purchased the bonds under the Liquidity Facility. This bank bond
rate was 5.0% at June 30, 2008. On September 23, 2008 the interest rate was 6.0% with a total
rate of 6.44% per annum.

In an effort to reduce the interest rate back to the terms in effect at June 30, 2008, the JDA
obtained a letter of credit from a bank in the amount of $6,474,667 (86,400,000 principal and
$74,667 interest component). This letter of credit has a stated expiration date of September 15,
2011, The variable intercst rate as of June 30, 2010 is 0.35%. Thc annual requirements to
amortize the JDA bond using terms in effect as of June 30, 2010, arc as follows:

Year ending,

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 60,000 S 3,150 $ 63,150
2012 60,000 2,940 62,940
2013 75,000 2,730 77,730
2014 75,000 2,468 77.468
2015 75,000 2,205 77,205
2016-2020 450,000 6,773 456,773
2021 105.000 368 105,368
Total $_900,000 $_ 20634 $__920634

—_————
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During 2008, the County acquired a GEFA loan of $67,311 for the extension of water and
wastewater to the Joint Industrial Development Authority Industrial Park property. Morgan
County is required to pay 13.8% of the total loan. The total debt outstanding at June 30, 2010 is
$58,191.

The annual rcquirements to amortize the GEFA loan using terms in effect as of June 30, 2010,
are as follows:

Year ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2011 3 3614 § 2643 3 6,257
2012 3,785 2,472 6,257
2013 3,965 2,293 6,258
2014 4,152 2,106 6,258
2015 4,349 1,909 6,258
2016-2020 25,031 6,258 31,289
2020-2024 13.295 786 14,081
Total $__38.191 $__18467 $__ 76.658

During 2008, the County entercd into an intergovernmental contract with the Morgan County
Building Authority for $19,000,000 to acquire the land and make renovations to the Jail building
and build an aquatic center. The County is to make annual payments. The outstanding balance
of this debt at June 30, 2010 is $16,455,000.

The annual requirements to amortize Jail Bonds using terms in effect as of June 30, 2010, are as
follows:

Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 1,045,000 $ 799,062 $ 1,844,062
2012 1,085,000 757,263 1,842,263
2013 1,140,000 703,012 1,843,012
2014 1,195,000 646,013 1,841,013
2015 1,255,000 586,262 1,841,262
2016-2020 7,285,000 1,924,063 9,209,063
2021-2025 3,450,000 234,275 3.684.275
Total 3 16,455,000 $ 5,649,950 $____ 22,104,950
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Compensated Absences

Typically, the general fund has been used to liquidate compensated absences except for items
related to the solid waste enterprise fund.

Health Department Discretely Presented Component Unit

Long-term debt activity for the Health Department for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as
follows:

Beginning Ending  Due Within  Due After
Governmental Activities Balance Additions  Reductions  Balance One Year One Year
Compensated absences  §___49.231 S___ 31,105 S__(38.589) S_41.747 3§ 7868 S_ 33879

]

Long-term debt activity for the Hospital Authority for the year ended June 30, 2010 , was as
follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within Due Afier

Business-type Activities Balance Additions  Reductions Balance One Year Onc Year
Bonds $ 780,000 § - $  (70,000) S 710,000 S 75,000 S 635,000
Notes payable 863,000 - (391,000) 472,000 412,000 60,000
Capital leases - 547,000 (64,000) 483.000 102.000 381.000
Total long-term liabilities $1.643.000 $_547.000 $__(525.000) $_ 1665000 $__589.000 3$__1,076,000

The terms and due dates of the Hospital Authority’s long-term debt, including capital leasc
obligations, at June 30, 2010, are as follows:

» 1997 Series Revenue Certificates, at varying rates of interest from 3.85% to 5.35%,
principal maturing in varying annual amounts, due July 2017, secured by County
commitment to provide revenues, through tax levy, sufficient to meet obligations under
the bond contract and to pay all reasonable operating expenses of the Authority. The
original proceeds of $1,385,000 were used to build a 21 bed skilled nursing unit.

« 2001 Series Revenue Anticipation certificate No.1, at 7.75% interest rate, due August
2011, payable in monthly installments of $3,000, collateralized by real estate and
guaranteed by Morgan County Board of Commissioners.

« 2001 Series Revenue Anticipation certificate No.2, at 5.00% interest rate, due August
2011, payable in monthly installments of $32,000, collateralized by real cstate and
guarantced by Morgan County Board of Commissioners.

« Note payable, originally $112,500 with interest rate variable at 75% of the Wall Street

Journal prime rate, payable in sixty (60) monthly installments of $2,000, collateralized by
the equipment purchased with the loan proceeds.
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» Capital lcase obligation, at 5.37%t collateralized by leased equipment.

The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt as of June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Year Ending Bonds and notes payable Capital Lcases
June 30,
Principal Interest Total Principal  Interest Total

2011 487,000 50,000 537,000 102,000 23,000 125,000
2012 140,000 32,000 172,000 107,000 18,000 125,000
2013 80,000 27,000 107,000 113,000 12,000 125,000
2014 85,000 23,000 108,000 119,000 6,000 125,000
2015 90,000 18,000 108,000 42,000 1,000 43,000
2016-2020 300.000 24,000 324.000 - - -
Total $_1,182.000 $174.000 $_1.356.000 $483.000 $_60.000 $_543.000

Short-Term Borrowings

On November 3, 2009, the Hospital Authority and the Morgan County Board of Commissioners
jointly entered into a $1,000,000 line-of-credit agreement with a local financial institution. The
line-of-credit will be used to fund project development costs associated with the replacement

facility. The linc-of-credit bears interest at 3.229%, is collateralized by real property, and has a
maturity date of November 3, 2010.

A schedule of changes in the Authority's short-term debt for 2010 follows:
Beginning Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance
Line-of-credit $ - $ 399.000 $ - 3 399.000
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2010, consist of the following:
Due to the General Fund from SPLOST fund for expenses paid by General Fund

Subtotal - due to General fund from SPLOST finds

Due 1o the General Fund from E911 nonmajor fund for salary reimbursements
Subtotal - due to other funds from other nonmajor governmental funds

Due to General Fund from Solid Waste for operating expenses
Subtotal - due to other funds from the proprietary funds

Total due to other funds

Summary of balanccs due from other funds reported in fund financial statements:
Due from other funds, Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
Total due from other funds

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2010, consist of the following:

Transfers from General fund
From General fund to Solid Waste Fund 10 supplement fiscal year, 2010 operations
Total transferred out from the General Fund
Transfers from Capital Projects fund
From Capital Projects fund to General fund to close the fund
Total transferred out from Capital Projects fund
Transfers from Other Nonmajor Governmental funds
From Senior Center fund to General fund to close fund
From Transit fund to General fund 10 close fund
From Parks and Recreation fund to General fund to close fund
From Special Revenue fund to General fund for use of fiscal year 2010 jail fees for operating expenses
From Spccial Revenue fund to General fund for use of fiscal year 2010 fees for operating expenses
From Hotel/Motel fund to General fund for activities during fiscal year 2010
From Jail fund to Special Revenue fund to close fund
From Youth Enrichment fund to Special Revenue fund to close fund
From Drug Education fund to Special Revenue fund to close fund
Total transferred out from Other Nonmajor Governmental funds.
Total

Summary of Transfers out to other funds reported in fund financial statements:
Transfers Out, Statement of Revenues, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental
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6.567
6.567

20,506
20,506

24.565

24,565
51,638

51,638

51,638

425,000
425,000

6.926
6,926

188,507
164,470
9.930
60,111
18,000
14,962
54,407
18,157
7,130
535,674

967.600

967,600
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLANS

Defined Benefit Pension Plan
A. Plan Description

The County contributes to the Association County Commissioners of Georgia Defined Benefit
Plan (the Plan), an agent multiple-employer public employce retirement system that acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for participating counties in Georgia. The Plan
was effective January 1, 1998.

The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan participants and beneficiaries.
The Plan, through execution of an adoption agreement, is affiliated with the Association County
Commissioners of Georgia Defincd Benefit Plan (the ACCG Plan), an agent multiple-employer
pension plan administered by Georgia Employees Benefits Corporation of Georgia. The ACCG,
in its role as the Plan Sponsor, has the sole authority to amend the provisions of The ACCG Plan,
as provided in Section 19.03 of the ACCG Plan document. The County has the authority to
amend the adoption agreement, which defines the specific benefit provisions of the Plan, as
provided in Section 19.02 of the ACCG Plan Document. The Plan issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to Morgan County Board of Commissioners,
P.O. Box 168, Madison, Georgia 30650.

All full-time County employees are eligible to participate in the Plan after completing three years
of service. Benefits vest after five years of service. Participants become eligible to retire at 60
with 3 years of participation in the Plan. The County’s covered payroll for employees
participating in the Plan as of January 1, 2009 (the most recent actuarial valuation date) was
$3,217,395 (based on covered earnings for the preceding year).

Upon cligibility to retire, participants are entitled to an annual benefit in the amount of 2.0% of
average annual compensation multiplied by the years of service. Compensation is averaged over
a five-year period prior to retirement or termination. The Plan also provides bencfits in the event
of death or disability. These benefit provisions were established by an adoption agreement
executed by the County Board of Commissioners.
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B. Funding Policy

The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The contribution amount
is determined using actuarial methods and assumptions approved by the ACCG Plan trustees and
must satisfy the minimum contribution requirement contained in the State of Georgia Statutes.
Section 47-20 of the Georgia Code sets forth the funding standards for state and local
governmental pension plans.

County employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. Contributions totaling $578,600
(8578,600 employer and $0 cmployee) were made in accordance with the contribution
requirements determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 2009. This was
greater than the minimum required contribution of $313,401.

C. Annual Pension Cost
The cost of administering the plan is funded with earnings from investments.

The Georgia Constitution enables the governing authority of the county, the Board of
Commissioners, to establish and amend from time to time, the contribution rates for the
employer and its plan members.

The County's contributions to the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were
$578,600, $502,002, and $479,641 respectively, and were equal to the required contribution for
each year.

Schedule 1 included in the required supplementary information presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. The projection of benefits for financial
reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual
funding limitations. The data for the most current year are as follows:

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAALasa
Date of Value of Liability (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered Percent of
January 1 Assets Projected Unit {(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Credit
(a) (b) (b-a) (w/b) (<) [(b-a)/c]
2010 $ 5,164,339 $6,986,114 $ 1,821,775 73.9%  $ 3,217,395 56.6 %
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The annual required contribution and percentage contributed for the current ycar and prior years
are as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual Pension  Actual County Percentage of Net Pension
June 30, Cost (APC) Contribution APC Contributed Obligation
2010 $ 552,903 $ 578,600 1046 % $  (195,263)
2009 484,612 502,002 103.6 % (169,566)
2008 ) 457,852 $ 479,641 1048 % $  (152,176)

The information was determined as part of the actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2009.
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date January 1, 2009
Actuarial Cost method Projected Unit Credit
Asset Valuation method Market Value
Amortization method Level Percent of Pay (Closed)
Remaining amortization period 10 years

(This represents the estimated amortization
period for all unfunded liabilities combined
into one amortization base.)

Actuarial assumptions;

Assumed rate of return on assets* 8.0% per annum
Expected future salary increascs* 6.0% per annum
Cost of Living Adjustments* 0.0% per annum

*Includes inflation at 3.0%

The County’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the pension plan for the current
year were dctermined as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 551,983
Interest on net pension obligation (13,141)
Amortization of net pension obligation 14.061
Annual pension cost 552,903
Contribution made (578.600)
Increase (decrease) in Net Pension Obligation (25,697)
Net pension obligation, January 1, 2009 (169.566)
Net pension obligation, January 1, 2010 $_(195.263)

Other Plans

In addition to the above pension plans, the following pension plans cover County employees but
the county is not legally responsible for contributions to the pension plans. Other governmental
entities arc legally responsible for these contributions as well as required disclosures:
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(A)  PROBATE JUDGES' RETIREMENT FUND OF GEORGIA: The Probate Judge
is covered under a pension plan which requires that certain sums from marriage
licenses and fines or bond forfeitures be remitted to the pension plan before the
payment of any costs or other claims.

(B) SUPERIOR COURT CLERKS' RETIREMENT FUND OF GEORGIA: The Clerk
of Superior Court is covered under a pension plan which requires that certain
sums from fees and fines or bond forfeitures be remitted to the pension plan
before the payment of any costs or other claims.

(C)  SHERIFF'S RETIREMENT FUND/PEACE OFFICER'S ANNUITY AND
BENEFIT FUND: The Sheriff and Sheriff’s Deputies arc covered under separate
pension plans which require that certain sums from fines or bond forfeitures be
remitted by the Probate Judge or Clerk of Superior Court to the pension plans
before the payment of any costs or other claims,

(D) GEORGIA STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM: The Health
Department’s eligible employees participate in the Georgia State Employees’
Retirement System (ERS), a statewide multiple-employer public employee
retircment system covering employees of local boards of health and various
agencies and departments of the State of Georgia. ERS is funded through
employer and employee contributions and the Health Department has no legal
obligation for paying benefits.

NOTE 9 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Amounts received or receivable for grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a lability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although
the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County is subject to possible legal actions in the nature of claims for damages to persons
and property, civil rights isolation and other similar types of actions arising in the course of
normal County operations. In the opinion of County management, after consultation with legal
counsel, the ultimate outcome of these possible legal actions will not have a material impact on
the financial position of the County.

The County has an agreement with The Morgan County Hospital Authority to reimburse the
Authority for all expenditures necessary for the maintenance, operation, and providing of
adequate and necessary facilities for medical care and hospitalization of the indigent sick. The
County shall also reimburse reasonable reserves for expansion and make payment of the cost of
all facilities of Morgan Memorial Hospital. The County agrees to adequately and fully pay all
sums due to the Authority under the agreement out of general funds of the County and/or by
levying all required taxes up to a maximum of seven (7) mils.
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In March of 2001, the County accepted a Community Dcvelopment Block Grant from the
Department of Community Affairs in the amount of $500,000 for the construction of a new
Senior Center. As a condition of the grant, the County must agree to use the facility for the
approved purpose throughout the life of the facility. Should the facility be converted to an
incligible use, the Department of Community Affairs will require repayment of the grant. The
repayment will be based on 20-year straight-linc depreciation, except 100% repayment of the
grant funds will be required to be repaid if the facility is converted during the first five years
after the grant closeout date. The period for calculating the repayment amount began upon the
closeout of the grant in 2003 and will continuc until year 2023.

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, thefts of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
following are ways the County handles thesc risks:

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

The County participates in the Association County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG) Group
Self Insurance Workers' Compensation Fund (GSIWCF), a self-insured pool cooperative
arrangement among its members to finance workers' compensation coverage. The fund is owned
by its members and is managed by a seven member Board of Trustees who are representatives
from participating counties. The ACCG-GSIWCF operates under the authority of O.C.G.A. 34-
9-150 et seq. and the Georgia Insurance Commissioner's Office. The members of ACCG-Group
Self Insurance Workers' Compensation Fund are assessable if the losses that ACCG must pay
exceed the assets of the pool. At June 30, 2010, there was no need for such an assessment.
Therefore, no liability has been recorded in these financial statcments.

OTHER

The County participates in the Association County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG)
Interlocal Risk Management Agency (IRMA), a risk sharing arrangement among Georgia
County Governments. The fund exists by authority of O.C.G.A. 36-85-1 ct seq. Premium
liabilitics are based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims, including effects of
inflation and other society and economic factors. The IRMA Limits of Liability shall not be
charged with the first $2,500 of any loss. IRMA pays losses up to $100,000 per individual claim
or 35,000,000 for all claims. However, excess losses, if any, are covered by reinsurance and
would be paid by the reinsurer.

The members of IRMA are assessable if the losses that IRMA must pay exceed the assets of the
pool. At June 30, 2010, there was no need for such an assessment. Therefore, no liability has
been recorded in these financial statements.
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As part of these risk pools (IRMA & GSIWCF), the County is obligated to pay all contributions
and assessments to cooperate with the pools’ agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction
procedures established by the funds, and to report as promptly as possible, and in accordance
with any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents that could require the funds to pay any type
of loss. The County is also to allow all the pools’ agents and attorneys to represent the County in
investigations, settlement discussions, and all levels of litigation arising out of any claim made
against the County.

The funds arc to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as
prescribed in the member government contract and in accordance with the worker’s
compensation law of Georgia. The funds are to pay all cost taxed against members in any legal
proceeding defended by the members, all interest accruing after entry of judgment, and all
expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or defcnse.

The County also purchases combined automobile, crime, liability and property insurance
coverage from the ACCG-IRMA. A $2,500 deductible applies to each claim. The County also
purchases caaestrophic coverage for inmate medical costs with a $10,000 deductible per inmate.
The following is a summary of coverage at June 30, 2010:

Property Losses $ 5,000,000 aggregate
Comprehensive General and Law Enforcement Liability 5,000,000 per occurrence
Automobile Liability 5,000,000 per occurrence
Errors and Omissions Liability 5,000,000 per occurrence

10,000,000 aggregate
Crime Coverage 150,000 per occurrence

50,000 per employee

Boiler and Machinery 100,000,000 per occurrence
Inmate medical 250,000 Specific limit per inmate
Inmate medical $ 750,000 Aggregate limit

The County has no outstanding claims in excess of coverage for which a liability should be
recorded as of June 30, 2010.

Settled claims in the past three yecars have not excceded the coverage.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

NOTE 11 - NORTHEAST GEORGIA REGIONAL COMMISSION

Morgan County, in conjunction with citics and counties in the area are members of the Northeast
Georgia Regional Commission (NEGRC). Membership in the NEGRC is automatic for each
municipality and county in the state. The official Code of Georgia Section 50-8-34 (Georgia
Planning Act of 1989) provides for the organizational structure of the regional commissions.
Each county and municipality in the state is required by law to pay minimum annual dues to the
NGRC. The county paid annual dues in the amount of $17,492 to the NEGRC for the year ended
June 30, 2010. The NEGRC Board membership includes the chief elected official of each
county and the chief elected official of each municipality. The County board members and
municipal board members from the same county elect one member of the Board who is a resident
(but not an elected or appointed official or employee of the County or municipality) to servc as
the nonpublic Board member from a County.

The Georgia Planning Act of 1989 (O.C.G.A. 50-8-34) defines regional commissions as “public
agencies and instrumentalities of their members.” Georgia laws also provide that the member
governments are liable for any debts or obligations of an regional commission beyond its
resources. (0.C.G.A. 50-8-39.1)

Separate financial statements for the NEGRC may be obtaincd from: Northeast Georgia
Regional Commission, 305 Research Drive, Athens, Georgia 30605.

NOTE 12 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST

State and federal laws and regulations required the County to place a final cover on its U.S.
Highway 441 landfill site when it stopped accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance
and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and
postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting
waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as a current
operating expenditure in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet
date.

These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in
2010. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in
regulations.

The County is also required to demonstrate financial assurance that the closure and postclosure

care cost can be paid in the future. The County is in compliance at June 30, 2010, based on
requirements issued by the EPA.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

NOTE 13 - SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

As discussed in NOTE 1, estimates are used in the preparation of these financial statements.
Three of the estimates qualify as significant estimates in that it is reasonably possible that the
estimates will change in the near term due to one or more future confirming events and this
change will have a material effect on the financial statements.

These estimates are as follows:

. The liability for landfill closure and postclosure care cost is based on estimates provided
by the County’s enginecring consultants and reduced each year by cxpenses related to the
closure and postclosure of the landfill. These estimates are based on what it would cost
to perform closure and postclosure care currently. Actual costs may change due to higher
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

. The estimate for allowance for doubtful accounts related to fines. This estimate is
calculated as 50% of the fines due to the County less amounts received in the first 60
days after year end. This cstimate will be assessed in future periods and adjusted as
necessary based on actual results.

. The estimate for accumulated depreciation on capital assets. This estimate is based on
the original or estimated cost of the assets, depreciated over the estimated useful lives
using the straight line method and composite method.

NOTE 14 - HOTEL/ MOTEL TAX

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the County had receipts of $36,015 and spent $21,053 to
promote tourism, conventions, and trade shows, Of this amount $11,253 was for state parks
operated by the Department of Natural Resources. The total expenditures represent 100% of the
tax receipts to be expended for these purposes under OCGA 48-13-51. The County has complied
with the requirements of this law.

NOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On October 6, 1998, Morgan County Commissioners voted to approve a resolution authorizing
the release of Morgan County from the Joint Development Authority consisting of Athens-
Clarke, Jackson, Madison, Morgan, Oconee, Oglethorpe and Walton countics.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010

During 1998, the Joint Devclopment Authority of Jasper County, Morgan County, Newton
County, and Walton County, a joint venture, was formed for the purpose of purchasing and
developing an industrial site. The land was purchased through the Walton County Development
Authority with temporary financing from Walton County until such time as the Joint Authority
could issuc permanent bond financing for the project. The Joint Authority issued $9,000,000 in
bonded dcbt in October 2000 for repayment of the Walton County Development Authority, to
pay issuance costs of the bond, and to provide initial development costs. The stated percentages
of ownership and debt assumption are as follows: Newton County 37.5%, Walton County 37.5%,
Morgan County 15%, and Jasper County 10%. The debt will amortize from 2001 and continue
through 2021. This debt is discussed more fully in Note 6. The County records the investment in
the joint venture at a value of $1,258,211, using the cquity interest method.

Separate financial statements of the Joint Development Authority of Jasper County, Morgan
County, Newton County, and Walton County can bc obtained directly from: Joint Development
Authority of Jasper County, Morgan County, Newton County, and Walton County, C/O Madison
Chamber of Commerce, 115 East Jefferson Street, Madison, Georgia 30650.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On December 7, 2010, the Hospital Authority and the Morgan County Board of Commissioners
Jointly entered into a $1,000,000 line-of-credit agreement with a local financial institution. The
line-of-credit will be used to fund project development costs associated with the replacement
facility. The line-of-credit bears interest at 3.229%, is collateralized by real property, and has a
maturity date of June 30, 2011. At the date of the resolution, $411,485 had been drawn on the
agreement with an additional $588,515 available for future draws.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PENSION FUNDING PROGRESS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

“Unaudited”
(6)
Actuarial (1 (3) 4) (5) UAALasa
Valuation Actuarial (2) Funded Unfunded Annual Covered Percentage
Date Value Actuarial Accrued Ratio AAL (UAAL) Payroll of Covered
(/1) of Assets Liability (AAL) (H/72) (2)-(H) {prior ycar) Payroll (4) / (5)
2010 $ 5,164,339  § 6,986,114 739 % S 1,821,775 $ 3,217,395 56.6 %
2009 4,610,501 6,480,259 71.1 % 1,869,758 2,842,259 65.8%
2008 4,556,779 5.872,195 77.6 % 1.315,416 2,672,957 49.2 %
2007 3,995,995 5,266,541 759 % 1,270,546 2,706,560 46.9 %
2006 3,388,004 4,902,313 69.1 % 1,514,309 2,573,219 58.8 %
2005 $ 2915941 § 4,286,640 68.0 % $ 1,370,699 $ 2,369,938 578 %

Analysis of the dollar amounts of actuarial value of assets available for benefits, actuarial accrued liability, and unfunded actuarial accrued liability in isolation can be
misleading. Expressing the actuarial value of assets available for benefits as a percentage of the actuarial accrued liability provides one indication of funding status on a
going concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over time indicates whether the system is becoming financial stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage,

the stronger the Plan.

Trends in unfunded actuarial accrued liability and annual covered payroll are both affected by inflation. Expressing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage
of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids analysis of the Plan's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when

due. Generally, the smaller this percentage, the stronger the Plan.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010
(Required Supplementary Information)

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year $ 5416386 § 5,416,386 5416386 § -
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
Taxes 11,641,147 11,641,147 11,465,747 (175.400)
Licenses and permits 109,600 109,600 101,929 (7.671)
Intergovernmeal 256,000 351,140 390,345 39,199
Fines and forfeitures 636,000 636,000 771,061 135,061
Charges for services 1,022,220 1,022,220 1,207,090 184870
Contributions and donations 24,000 24,000 35810 11,810
Investment income 232,050 232,050 78.097 (153,953)
Miscellaneous 5,000 5,000 35,202 30,202
Sale of county property - . 25,284 25,284
Transfers in 490,317 490317 462,906 27.411)
Total Resources (Inflows) 14,416,334 14,511,480 14,573,471 61.991
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 19,832,720 19.927.866 19.989.857 61.991
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (CUTFLOWS)
Current Expenditures
General Government
Board of commissioners 80,504 81,704 64,647 17,057
County manager 224,624 251,902 251,774 128
County clerk 66,859 66,859 62,985 3874
Finance 546,548 284915 255,773 29,142
Law 95,250 134,483 134,483 -
Management information 318.266 320485 314,194 6,291
Human resources 59,202 59,202 51.840 7.362
Tax commissioner 232,960 232,960 231,401 1,559
Tax assessor 497,414 498,356 448,497 49,859
Risk management 206,000 195313 188,798 6,515
General government 789,358 802,164 801,735 429
Records management 28.197 26.697 26,581 116
Gieneral administration fees 21,145 21,145 21,145
Board of equalization 50,555 50,555 46,971 3,584
Hoard of registrars 138.521 138.521 104.396 34.125
Total General Government 3.355.403 3.165.261 3.005.220 160.041
Judicial
Ocmulgee Circuit 26,937 29,472 29,472 -
Clerk of superior court 408,555 429,301 428,889 412
District attorney 56,627 56,627 55.570 1,057
Magistrate count 297,112 297,112 291,141 5971
Probate count 246,969 246,969 246,111 858
Juvenile court 28,145 34,255 34,255
Public defender 51.018 51.018 51,018 .
Total Judicial 1,115,363 1,144,754 1,136,456 8,298
Public Safety
Law enforcement administration 246,159 406,031 405,480 551
Criminal investigation 302,119 245,119 244,407 712
Uniform patrol 1,028,293 945,293 945,206 87
Jail operation 1,090,405 1,281,876 1,281,876
Court services 191,725 169.807 169,522 285
Fire administration 507,712 540,062 540,062 R
Ambulance 312,008 312,005 307,375 4,630
Coroner/Medical Examiner 23,386 23,914 19,736 4,178
E-91 1/CommunicationsCenter 430,449 430,449 65.818 364,631
Emergency Management Agency 70,385 64,455 59,567 4,888
Ammal control 199.176 199.176 190.044 9.132
Total Public Safety 4,401,784 4,618,187 4,229,093 389.004
Public Works
Highways and streets 1,265,513 1,306,040 1,306.046 .
Solid waste and recycling 698,184 698,184 425,000 273,184
Maintenance and shop 120.010 112,054 110.739 1315
Total Public Works 2.083.707 2.116.284 1,841,785 274 499
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CONTINUED.......

Public Health and Welfare
Senior citizens center
Transportation services
D.F.ACS. building
D.FACS.

Advantage behavioral
Walton'Margan unlimited
Health care facilities

Total Public Health and Welfare

Recreation and Culture
Parks and recreation
Library
Agriculture center

Total Recreation and Culture

Housing and development
Soil conservation
Forestry services
Building inspection
Planning and zoning
Code enforcement
County agent
Development authority
Action, Inc.

Total Housing and Development

TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, End of year

MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

(Required Supplementary Information)

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

225,450 237,116 236,906 210

235,130 219,762 219,094 668

123,085 1257714 117,032 8.739
22,000 22,000 22.000
24,705 24,705 24,705
21,002 21,002 21,002

1.060.339 1,067,589 1,067,589 -
1.711.711 1,717,945 1.708.328 9.617
753,746 753,746 705,091 48,655

177,152 177,152 177,152 -

2.700 3,383 3,383 -

933.598 934,281 885.626 48,655
17,719 12,719 16,614 1.105
23,616 23,616 5,766 17.850

234,929 233,790 219,454 14,336

124,817 125456 125.265 191
95,817 95,817 91,160 4,657

117,013 117,013 84,496 32,517

189,257 189,257 159,179 30,078
12.340 12,340 12,330 -

815.008 $15.008 714.274 100,734

14,416,574 14,511,220 13,520,782 990.938
(240) {240) 1,052,689 1,052,929
$  sdl6lds s Sd4leMs S 6469075 S 1052.029

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule is the same as GAAP.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major capital
projects) that are legally restricted for specific purposes. The following special revenue funds are maintained by the
County:

Emergency Telephone Service - to account for the monthly "911" charge to help fund the cost of providing the
service as provided in title 46, Chapter 5 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated.

Special Revenue Fund - to account for funds, such as fines, confiscated monies and donations received by Elected
Officials of Morgan County to be expended within legal guidelines of each program.

Hotel/Motel Tax - to account for taxes charged on rental of hotel/motel rooms as provided in title 48, chapter 13 of
the Official Code of Georgia Annotated. These funds are used for the promotion of tourism, conventions and trade
shows in the County.

Law Library - to account for funds collected from fines and forfeitures to be used to maintain the Law Library as
provided in title 36, chapter 15 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated.

Sheriff’s Law Enforcement - to account for funds from seizures to be used for law enforcement activities.



ASSETS

Cash

Receivables {net of allowance for uncollectuibies)
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilitics

Accounts payable

Due to other funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCES

Unreserved, undesignated:

Special Revenue Funds

TOTAL FUND BALANCES
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2010
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
TOTAL
EMERGENCY  SPECIAL NONMAJOR
TELEPHONE  REVENUE LAW SHERIFF'S LAW  GOVERNMENTAL
SERVICES FUND LIBRARY  ENFORCEMENT FUNDS
s 230218 § 102,752 $ 15023 $ 109,952 S 457,945
47,840 6,808 - - 54,648
s 278058 S 109560 § 15023 S 109,952 § 512,593
s 1,300 $ 3 3762 S - $ 15,063
20,506 - - - 20,506
31.807 R 3,762 - 35.569
246,251 109,560 11261 109.952 477,024
246,251 109,560 11,261 109.952 477,024
3 278058 S 109.560 S 15023 8 109952 S 512,593
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REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovemnmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for senvices
Contributions and donations
Investment income
Miscellancous
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current Expenditures
Judicial
Public safety
Public health and welfare
Housing and development
Capital outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES
OVER(UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES)

Sale of county propenty
Transters in
Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USKE:S)

NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, Beginning
of year

FUND BALANCES, End of
year

MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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DRUG ABUSE . ) TOTAL
EMERGENCY  SPECIAL HOTEL/ TREATMENT PARKS SHERIFF'S l\()Nl\'IAJOR‘
TELEPHONE REVENUE YOUTH MOTEL LAW & AND SENIOR LAW .!,\IL GO\’ERX\MEENI Al
SERVICE FUND ENRICHMENT TAX LIBRARY EDUCATION RECREATION CENTER  TRANSIT ENFORCEMENT  FUND FUNDS
$ - $ - $ - S 36,015 . $ - $ - S - S - S - s - $ 36,005
110,600 - - . - . E . . 7.690 117,690
- 110,618 - - 35,350 - - - - 99.539 245,507
309,087 - - - - . - - - 1927 311,014
- - - - - - 12,026 - 12,026
1,604 433 - - - - - - 57 2794
- - - . . - - - 2.256 - 2.256
420.691 111,051 - 36.015 35.350 - - - - 124.195 - 727.302
. R R 50.664 R . . . 50.66+4
536,229 158 - - - . 98,954 635,341
- 2916
- 2,916 - - - - - 24
- . - 21,053 - - - - - - . 21,053
154.931 - - - - - - 34.817 189.748
691.160 3.074 - 21,083 50.664 - - - - 133.771 - 899,722
(270.469) 107.977 14.962 (15314 - - - - (9.576) - (172.420)
- - - - - 19.753 19,753
79.694 - - - - . - - . - 79,694
- (78.111) (8.157) _14.962) - (7.130) (9.930) _ (188.507) (1644700 (34.407) (535,674)
- 1,583 (18.157) _(14.962) - (1.130) (9.930) _ (188.507) (164,470) 19,753 (54.407) (436,227}
(270.469) 109,560 (18,157) - (15.319) (7.130) (9.930) (188,507 (164,470) 10,177 (54.307) (608,647)
516,720 - 18,157 - 26.575 7,130 9.930 188.507 164.470 99.775 54,407 1,085.671
3 246,251 § 109560 § - S - 11,261 $ - S - s - $ - $ 109952 § - S 417024



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
FUND BALANCE, Begianing of year $ 516720 $ 516720 S 516,720 $ -
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
Intergovernmental 110,000 110,000 110,000 -
Charges for services 212,000 212,000 309.087 97,087
Investment income 4,700 4,700 1.604 (3.096)
Total Resources (Inflows) 326,700 326.700 420.691 93,991
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 843.420 843,420 932411 93.991
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)
Current Expenditures
Public safety 557,331 712,262 691,160 21,102
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 557.331 712.262 691.160 21.102
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (230.631) {385.562) (270.469) 115093
FUND BALANCE, End of year $ 286,089 § 131,158  § 246251 § 115.093

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule is the same as GAAP.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
SPECIAL REVENUE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year $ . $ - $ - $
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
Fines and forfeitures 78,050 78,050 110,618 32,568
Investment income 1,000 1,000 433 (567)
Transfer in 79.694 79.694 79,694 .

Total Resources (Inflows) 158,744 158,744 190,745 32,001
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 158,744 158,744 190.745 32.001
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)

Current Expenditures
Public safety 83811 83,811 78,269 5.542
Public health and welfare 5.300 5.300 2916 2.384
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 89,111 89,111 81,185 7,926
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 69.633 69.633 109.560 39,927
FUND BALANCE, End of year $ 69,633 § 69,633 § 109,560 $ 39,927

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule is the same as GAAP.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
YOUTH ENRICHMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE wWiTH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
FUND BALANCE, Beginming of year $ 18.157  § 18,157 § 18,157 § -
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 18,157 18.157 18.157 -
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)

Transfers out 18.157 18.157 18,157 -
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 18.157 18.157 18.157 -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (18.157) (18.157) (18.157) -
FUND BALANCE, End of year $ - $ - 3 - $ -

l(
!l

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule is the same as GAAP.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
HOTEL / MOTEL TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITI}
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year $ - S - $ - $ -
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
Taxes 36.100 36.100 36,015 (85)
T'otal Resources (Inflows) 36,100 36,100 36,015 (85)
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 36,100 36,100 36,015 (85)
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)
Current Expenditures
Housing and development 36.100 36.100 36015 85
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 36.100 36.100 36015 85
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - - -
FUND BALANCE, End of vear $ - $ - $ - S -

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULLE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule is the same as GAAP.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
LAW LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
FUND BALANCE, Begmning of ycar 3 26575 S 26,575 § 26,575 %
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
Fincs and forfeitures 38.100 38,100 35,350 (2.750)
Total Resources (Inflows) 38,100 38.100 35,350 (2.750)
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 64.675 64,675 61,925 (2,750)
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)
Current Expenditures
Judicial 50,458 50,458 50,663 (206)
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 50,458 50,458 50,664 (206)
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (12,358) (12.358) (15.314) (2.956)
FUNI BALANCE, End of year S 14217  § 14.217  § 11,261 § (2.956)

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule is the same as GAAP,



MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
DRUG ABUSE TREATMENT & EDUCATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

FUND BALANCE, Begianing of year $ 7.130 $ 7130 § 7130 S -
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 7.130 7.130 7,130 -
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)

Transfers out 7,130 7.130 7.130 -
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 7.130 2.130 7.130 -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (7.130) (7.130) (7.130) -

FUND BALANCE, End of ycar

{e]
L d
.
L ad
.
o

\\

“
\l

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting uscd in this schedule is the same as GAAP.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA

PARKS AND RECREATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended Junc 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL. ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year S 9930 ¢ 9930 $ 9,930 -
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)

AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 9.930 9.930 9,930 -
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)

Transfers out 9,930 9,930 9,930 -
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 9,930 9,930 9.930 -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (9.930) 19.930) (9.930) -

FUND BALANCE, End of year $ - $ b - -

l
ll
ll

NOTES T0O THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule s the same as GAAP.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year S 138.507 § 188,507 $ 188.507 $
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 188.507 |88.507 188.507
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)

Transfers out 188,507 188,507 188.507 -
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 188,507 188.507 188,507 -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (188.507) (188.507) (188.507) -

FUND BALANCE, End of year

R
'

w
.

Llad
.

Rl
.

|\
0

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
L. The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule is the same as GAAP.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
TRANSIT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year $ 164470 § 164470 $ 164470  § -
RESQURCES (INFLOWS)
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 164,470 164.470 164,470 -
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)

‘Transfers out 164.470 164,470 164.470 -
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 164,470 164.470 64,470 -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (163.470) (164,470) (164.470) -

FUND BALANCE, End of year

L d
.
"
.
Ued
.
o
‘

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule is the same as GAAP.
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA

SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)

Intergovernmenal

Iines and forfeitures

Charges for services

Contributions and donations

Investment income

Miscellancous

Sale of county propenty

Total Resources (Inflows)

AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS)
Current Expenditures
Public safety
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUNID BALANCE, End of year

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

I The budgetary basis of accounting used in this schedule is the same as GAAP.
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BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
99.775 % 99.775  § 99.775

. 7.690 7.690
100,000 100,000 99.539 (461)
1927 1,927

12,026 12,026

757 757

2,256 2,256

. 19.753 19.753
100.000 100.000 143,948 43,948
199,775 199,775 243.723 43,948
100,000 100,000 133,771 (33.771)
1030.000 100,000 133,771 (33.771)

- 10.177 10.177
99,775 § 99,775 § 109,952 $ 10,177




MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA

JAIL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

BUDGET AMOUNTS POSITIVE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year s 54407 8 54407 54,407 § -
RESOURCES (INFLOWS)
AMOUNTS AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 54.407 54,407 54,407 -
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (QUTFLOWS)

Transfees out 54,407 54,407 54 407 -
TOTAL CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS 54,407 $4.407 54.407 -
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (54,407) (54,407) (54.407)

FUND BALANCE, End of year b - S - S - 5 -

NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
1. The budgetary basis of accounting used n this schedule is the same as GAAP
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds. Agency funds maintained by the County are as follows:

Tax Commissioner - to account for the collection of property taxes, motor vehicle tag and title fees and mobile
home fees, etc. which are disbursed to various taxing units.

Clerk of Superior Court - to account for the collection of various fines, forfeitures, jury fund receipts, real estate
transfer taxes, recording of intangibles, fees, civil awards, etc. which are disbursed to other parties.

Probate Court - to account for the collection of fees for a probate of wills, administration of estates, issuance of
marriage licenses, and maintenance of other vital records which are disbursed to other parties.

Magistrate Court - to account for the collection of fees in jurisdiction of small claims courts which are disbursed to
other parties.

Sheriff - to account for the collection of cash bonds, fines, forfeitures, fifas, etc. which are disbursed to other parties.



ASSETS
Cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Amounts held in trust

TOTAL LIABILITIES

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2010
CLERK OF
TAX SUPERIOR PROBATE MAGISTRATE
COMMISSIONER COURT COURT SHERIFF TOTAL
22,422 S 166.373 S 70,234 S 1.792  § 63,131 S 323,952
22422 § 166,373 § 70,234 S |.7£ $ 63,131 § 323,952
22422 $ 166373 § 70,234 $ 1,792 S 63,131 § 323,952
22422 70234 $ 1,792 S 63.131 S 323,952

s 166373 S
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ASSETS
Cash

Balance, July [, 2009

Additions
Deductions

Balance, June 30, 2010

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to County

Balance, July 1, 2009

Additions
Deductions

Balance, June 30, 2010

Ameounts held in trust

Balance, July I, 2009

Additions
Deductions

Balance, June 30, 2010

Total Liabilitics

Balance. July 1, 2009

Additions
Deductions

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

60

CLERK OF
TAX SUPERIOR PROBATE MAGISTRATE
COMMISSIONER COURT COURT COURT SHERIFF TOTAL

24393 § 177182 § 46615 § 948 S 53497 S 302,635
23,425,128 865,757 05,273 396,775 380,698 25,873,631
(23.427.099) (876.566) (781.654) (395.931) (371,064) (25.852.314)
22422 166373 70,234 1.792 63.131 323,952

22422 S 166373 S 70234 S 1,792 S 63131 S 323.952

- s . $ . s $ $ -

8,814,114 419,756 575,768 67.254 33,603 9,910,495
{8.814,114) {419,756) (575,768) {67,254) (33,603) (9,910.495)
24,393 177.182 36,615 948 53,497 302,635
14,611,014 446,001 229,508 329,521 347,095 15,963,136
(14,612.985) (456.810) (205.886) (328.677) (337.461) {15.941.819)
22422 166,373 70,234 1,702 63.131 323952

24,393 177.182 46,615 948 53,497 302,635
23.325.128 865.757 $05.273 396,775 380,698 25,873,631
(23.427.099) (876.566) (781.654) (395.931) (37).064) (25.852.314)
22422 S 166373 S 70234 S 1792 S 63.131 S 323.952
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS CONSTRUCTED WITH SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

EXPENDITURES
PRIOR YEARS CURRENT YEAR

ORIGINAL CURRENT
PROJECT ESTIMATED COSTS ESTIMATED COSTS
SPLOST #IV (Commenced April 1, 2002)

Joint Morgan County and City of Madison water line
capital outlay project S 1,000,000 S 189,753
Various roads and bridges projects 7,380,000 5.919,496
Various public buildings capital outlay projects 2,000,000 3,582,117
Various solid waste capital outlay projects 600,000 150,181
Various Fire Department capital outlay projects 4,000,000 3,315,969
Various Recrcation capital outlay projects 2,200,000 808,261
City of Madison cntitlement 820,000 655,562
Total SPLOST #4 $ 18,000,000 3 14,621,339

) 189,753 $ -

5,919,496 -

3,582,117 -
150,181 -

3,315,969 .
745,129 (12.108)
655,562 -
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MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA

SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS CONSTRUCTED WITH SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

SPLOST #V - Commenced April 1, 2007
Project
LEVEL 1 COUNTY PROJECTS

Public safety/Detention Cenler
LEVEL 2 COUNTY PROJECTS

Road and Bridge Improvements and Equipment

Library Facility Improvements and Equipment

Recreational Facility Improvements and Equipment

Water System Improvements and Equipment

Sanitation Improvements and Equipment

Purchase of and Improvements to County Administration Building
Interest expense on Bonds, less interest income

Subtotal All County Projects

MUNICIPAL PROJECTS
City of Madison
Road and Bridge Improvements and Equipment
Public Warks Building Construction/Improvements and Equipment
Public Safety Building Construction/Improvements and Equipment
City Hall Renovations
Park Improvements and Equipment

Subtotal

City of Rutledge
Water and Sewer System Improvements and Equipment

City of Bostwick

Road and Bridge Improvements and Equipment

City Hall Improvements and Equipment

Water System Improvements and Equipment
Subtotal

City of Buckhead
Road and Bridge Improvements and Equipment
Fire Station Improvements/Addition

Subtotal

Totat All City Projects (1}

Total All Projects

Original Current Amount Expended
Estimaled Estimated Year 1 Year 2 Year3 Year 4
Cost Cost 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

$ 10,500,000 $12,000,000 $ - $4,403,358 $7,419.912 $12,182,166 $24,005,436
10,500,000 10,500,000 - 293,469 1,351,017 898,810 2,543,296
$00.000 900,000 - - 300,000 300,000
750,000 1,000,000 - 22,800 950,948 - 973,748
233,391 233,391 - 1,456 - 1,456
59,000 59,000 - - 550 550
1,000,000 1,000,000 - 157,094 - - 157,094
- - (346) 28,252 - 27.906
23,942,391 25,692,391 (346) 4,904,973 9,723,333 13,381,526 28,009,486
600,000 600,000 21,779 87,558 77,334 79,499 266,170
400,000 400,000 14,520 58,372 51,556 §3.000 177,448
350,000 350,000 12,705 51,075 45,111 46,375 155,266
250,000 250,000 9,075 36,482 32,222 33.125 110,804
204,400 204,400 7.419 29,828 26,345 27,083 90.675
1,804.400 1.804,400 65,498 263.315 232,568 239.082 800,463
168.600 158,600 5,757 23,040 20,357 20,934 70,088
30,000 30,000 1,089 4,407 3,946 3,885 13,327
13,435 13,435 488 1,974 1,767 1,740 5,969
15.000 15,000 544 2,203 1,973 1,942 6,662
58.435 58,435 2,121 8,584 7,686 7,567 25,958
21,174 21,174 769 3,093 2,778 2,755 9,395
15,000 15,000 544 2.191 1,968 1,952 6,655
36,174 36,174 1,313 5,284 4,746 4,707 16,050
2,057,609 2,057,609 74,689 300,223 265,357 272,290 912,559
$ 26.000.000 $27.750,000 $ 74,343 $5.205.196 $9.988.690 $13.653.816 _$28.922,045

1. The County remits the tax collected lo the Municipalities who are responsible for reporting on the expenditures in accordance with OCGA 48-8-121.
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Morgan County, Georgia Compr ehensive Annual Financial Report 2010
Statistical Section

The statistical section provides users with additional historical perspective, content, and detail to assist in understanding the information
in the financial statements, notes to financial statements, required supplementary information, and for assessing the County’s economic
condition.

Financial trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County’s financial
performance and well-being have changed OVET tIME. ..........ccoiririiieiiniinncesreer et ae s te e e saesbessessessesebesesnasessasans 63-69

Revenue capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County’s most significant local revenue

SOUICE, PTOPETLY TAXES. ...ocemrenriutieneenereeeeieameerecnesneesessesseetssnessessessnessessesstsseesessssnessessesentsnseestontentenstestsseestosseseeseesnrensessssntesestnsossensenen 70-73
Debt capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the County’s current

levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. ............cccooeiiiiciniiniiniese s 74-76

Demographic and economic information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the County’s financial activities take place. ...........ccoi i 77-78

Operating information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information
in the County’s financial report relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs..........ccocceoveecreeennee.. 79-81

Sources:

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year. The
County implemented GASB statement 34 for fiscal year June 30, 2003, schedules presenting government-wide information start with
fiscal year 2003.



Morgan County, Georgia Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 2010
Statistical Section

Net assets by components — last eight years (accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt $ 13227331 $§ 15661,171 $ 18837911 $ 20320,166 $ 60744769 $ 61204935 $ 55714514 $ 56,528,239
Restricted 391,525 4,213,208 3,371,944 4,656,654 2,894,625 1,034,074
Unrestricted 4,645,559 5,122,065 4,681,821 4,949,319 6,013,298 6,387,344 7,956,715 8,764,214
Total governmental activities
net asscts 17,872,890 20,783,236 23,911,257 29,482,693 70,130,011 72,248,933 66,565,854 66,326,527
Business-type activitics
Invested in capital asscts, net
of related debt 523,483 523,095 488,361 494,434 623,605 553,538 498,269 435,751
Restricted
Unrestricted (308.226) (347.562) (348.984) (384,063) (389.821) (197,287) (93,952) (273.097)
Total business-type activities
nct assets 215,257 175,533 139,377 110,371 233,784 356,251 404,317 162,654
Primary govemment
[nvested in capital assets, net
of related debt 13,750,814 16,184,266 19,326,272 20,814,600 61,368,374 61,758,473 56,212,783 56,963,990
Restricted - - 391,525 4,213,208 3,371,944 4,656,654 2,894,625 1,034,074
Unrestricted 4,337,333 4,774,503 4,332,837 4,565,256 5,623,477 6,190,057 7,862,763 8,491,117
Total primary activitics net
assets $ 18088147 $ 20958769 $ 24,050,634 $ 29593064 $ 70,363,795 $ 72605184 $ 66970171 $ 66,489,181

Retroactive infrastructure was added in 2007.



Morgan County, Georgia
Statistical Section

Changes in nets assets — last cight years (accrual basis of accounting)

Expenses

Govemmental activities
General govemment
Public safety
Judiciary

Health and welfare

Culture and recreation

Public works

Housing and development

Intergovemmental

Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activitics

Business type activitics:
Solid waste
Total busincss-type activitics

Total primary govemment expenses

Program revenuces
Govemmental activities
Charges for services
General govemment
Public safety
Judiciary
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Public works
Housing and development
Total charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total govemmental activitics program revenues

Business type activitics:
Charges for services
Solid waste
Total business-type activitics program revenues
Total primary govemment program revenucs

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 2010

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
1,649852 § 1,833,593 & 1,937,747 3 2183580 $ 2829700 3 2855057 $ 3,133,984 3,351,744
3,450,982 3,617,274 3,962,080 4,405,079 4,554,357 4,913,787 5,191,945 5,307,303
932,446 911,146 914,292 947,640 991,742 1,109,741 1,157,153 1,184,957
1,709,232 1,653,325 1,714,015 1,769,044 1,736,282 1,819,094 1,828,844 1,659,014
804,686 583,112 742,137 709,565 91,172 846,539 944,780 1,219,227
1,937,000 2,277,712 2,665,452 2,319,947 4,608,035 4,522,872 4,792,370 4,855,857
517,303 438,871 639,383 669,125 756,911 884,788 764,023 661,589
100,860 183,661 142,012 165,561
264414 243,250 199,383 180,184 171.729 623.216 869,746 830,572
11,366,775 11,741,944 12.916.501 13,349,725 16,439,928 17.575.094 18.682.845 19,070,263
848,597 562,979 599,244 953,260 1,099,220 1,229,757 1,173,153 954.279
848,597 562,979 599,244 953,260 1,099,220 1,229,757 1,173,153 954.279
12,215372 12,304,923 13,515,745 14,302,985 17,539,148 18,804,851 19,855,998 20,024,542
328,993 344,267 373,630 388,148 491,005 702,075 562,398 583,893
397,344 422,013 576,625 690,812 469,412 617,775 623,592 646,449
881,350 1,046,759 965,623 969,501 802,409 937,425 985,746 1,039,309
232,864 206,143 221,360 214,077 197,622 70,531 59,628 49,433
139,577 135,495 122,864 129,017 165,268 221,360 206,481 262,664
167,963 279,776 344.664 349,000 426,486 345.103 415,055 149.986
2,148,091 2,434,453 2,604,766 2,740,555 2,552,202 2,894269 2,852,900 2,731,734
409,825 496,118 453,368 423,841 524910 423,937 345,115 1,021,163
1,067,411 448,632 196,956 1,060,470 501,932 590,657 412,386 320,317
3.625.327 3,379,203 3,255,090 4.224.866 3,579.044 3,908,863 3,610,401 4,073,214
707,579 343,791 415477 348,093 385,146 406,576 341,034 287,163
707.579 343,791 415,477 348,093 385,146 406,576 341.034 287,163
4,332,906 3,722,994 3,670,567 4,572,959 3.964.190 4,315,439 3.951.435 4.360.377

After 2006, intergovernmental expense has been allocated to other functions.
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Morgan County, Georgia
Statistical Section

Changesin nets assets— last eight years (accrual basis of accounting)

continued...

Net (expense)/revenue
Govemmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary govemment net expense

General revenues and other changes in net asscts
Govemmental activities:
Taxes
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Insurance premium taxes
Real estate recording taxes
Other taxes
Total Taxcs
Investment income
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total govemmental activities

Business type activities:
Investment income
Trans fers

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Change in net assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activitics
Total primary government

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 2010

2,003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(7,741,448) (8,362,741) (9,661,411) (9,124,859) (12,860,884) (13,666,231) (15,072,444) (14,997,049)
(141,018) (219,188) (183,767) (605,167) (714,074) (823.181) (832.119) (667,116)
(7.882,466) (8.581.929) (9.845,178) (9,730,026) (13,574,958) (14,489.412) (15.904,563) (15,664,165)
5,679,232 6,119,749 6,688,847 7,442,866 7,692,493 8,329,546 8,263,596 8,312,443
3,868,401 4,127,396 4,998,280 6,303,494 6,359,917 6,569,439 5,797,590 5,963,470
376,331 403,595 436,698 466,340 488,710 513,885 526,410 518,862
212,405 229,384 217,697 289,000 261,507 213,685 173,461 116,810
175,163 133,462 184,186 163,146 167,705 152,497 141,240 133,615
10,311,532 11,013,587 12,525,708 14,664,846 14,970,332 15,779,052 14,902,297 15,045,200
126,777 65,508 58,014 219374 435,174 615,431 261,418 92,485
332,929 204,967 341,074 348,739 353,997 304,611 307,172 -
626,460 20,167 11,720 38,157 26,663 26,087 68,111 45,037
{55.000) (121,141 (147,084) (574,821) (835.990) (940,028) (878.485) (425,000)
11,342,698 11,273,088 12,789,432 14,696,295 14,950,176 15,785,153 14,660,513 14,757,722
967 469 527 1,340 1,497 5,620 1,700 454
55000 121,141 147,084 574,821 835,990 940,028 878,485 425,000
55,967 121,610 147,611 576,161 837.487 945,648 880,185 425,454
11,398,665 11,394,698 12,937,043 15,272,456 15,787,663 16,730,801 15,540,698 15,183,176
3,601,250 2,910,347 3,128,021 5,571,436 2,089,292 2,118,922 (411,931) (239,327)
(85,051) (97.578) (36,156) (29,006) 123,413 122,467 48,066 (241,662)
$_ 3516199 $§ 2812769 § 3.091.865 § 5542430 § 2212705 $ 2241389 § (363.865) §  (480,989)
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Morgan County, Georgia
Statistical Section

Fund balances, governmental funds — last eight years (modified accrual basis of accounting)

General fund
Reserved
Unreserved

Total General fund

All other govemmental funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds
Total alt other governmental funds

Total

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 2010

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

$ 1565805 § 210099 $ 246566 $ 237,122 $ 240340 $ 478082 § 174675 $ 86,720
2,540,394 2,701,430 3,239,492 4,949,884 5,270,887 4,970,032 5,241,711 6,382,355
4,106,199 2,911,529 3,486,058 5,187,006 5,511,227 5,448,114 5,416,386 6,469,075
- 1,300,000 391,525 3,824,606 2,937,843 19,573,659 11,759,473 568,311
355,002 393,823 459,967 611,276 778,291 1,006,678 1,084,759 477,024

4,454,479 1,696,865 1,697,418 192,801 93,038 151,785 6,926 -
4,809,481 3,390,688 2,548,910 4,628,683 3,809,172 20,732,122 12,851,158 1,045,335
$ 8915680 $ 6302217 $ 6034968 $ 9815689 § 9320399 $ 26,180236 § 18,267,544 § 7,514,410




Morgan County, Georgia
Statistical Section

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 2010

Changes in fund balances governmental funds — last eight years (modified accrual basis of accounting)

Revenuces
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovemmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Contributions and donations
Investment income
Miscellanecous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Gencral govemment
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culturc and recreation
Housing and development
Intergovernmental
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Issuance costs
Total expenditures

Excess of revenucs over expenditures

OCther financing sources/(uscs)
Salc of capital asscts
Premium on bonds issued
Capital lcases issued
Contracts payabk issued
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources/(uses)

Net change in fund balance

Debt service as o pereentage of
noncapital expenditures

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
10,291,534 10919795 $ 12612054 $ 1458948 S 14948577 $ 15671614 $ 14824505 §S 14946628
178,307 281,667 346,057 350,273 281,189 185,857 106,293 79,545
1,763,120 $93,887 946,497 918,447 1,198,059 1,256,711 988,058 820,662
735,017 693,608 971,988 956,255 991,313 929,737 937,734 1.016,568
1,029,087 1,072,241 1,068.454 1,251,210 1,324,183 1,449,018 1,393,637 1,540,489
47,980 60,139 44,901 72,403 117,835 62,493 61,615 47,836
126,777 65.510 56,284 219,374 435,174 615,434 261,419 92,483
158,957 171,024 200,553 190,270 98,457 179,700 38473 37,758
14,330,779 14,157,871 16,246,788 18,547,718 19,394,787 20,350,564 18,611,734 18,581,969
1,601,641 1,526,380 1,749,118 1,880,958 2,167,012 2458476 2,709,580 2,985,625
901,626 908,245 914,538 947,600 990,846 1,101,157 1,160,088 1,187.120
3,188971 3,286,966 3,606,815 4,015.281 4,182,382 4,519,721 4,723,188 4,810,568
1,779,222 1,980,225 2,157914 1,735,893 1.987.833 1,849,568 2,571,885 2.555.869
1,621,892 1,605,470 1,644,649 1,675,515 1.692,187 1,742,113 1,791,126 1,616,343
750,074 569,539 730,900 698,983 771,673 796,297 889,943 1,185,626
508,830 431,335 630,731 664,207 751,833 847,346 725,381 626,148
100,860 183,661 142,012 165,561 198,978 300,223 264,766 272,291
6,059,576 4,593,280 3,391,537 1,504,040 5,597,617 6,847,486 8,869,174 11,664,706
1,443,494 1,590,743 1,467,301 1,462,489 1.576,870 1,915,897 1,104,840 1,144,811
264,414 243,250 199,383 180,184 163,518 681,468 948,678 906,033
- - - - - 302.674 s -
18,220,600 16,919,094 16,634,898 14,930,711 20,080,749 23,362,426 25.758.649 28,955,140
(3,889,821) (2,761,223) (388,110) 3,617,007 (685,962) (3.011,862) (7,146,915) (10,373.171)
27,470 18,901 17,945 38,535 26,663 729,307 112,708 45,037
- - - . . 1,015,109 - -
501,566 250,000 250,000 700,000 - - - -
- - - - 1,000,000 19,067,311 - -
1,233,258 2,743,990 1,585,848 979,105 1,028,181 2,552,257 869,586 542,600
{1,288.258) (2,865,131) (1,732,932) (1,553.926) (1,864,172) (3,492.285) (1,748,071) (967.600)
474,036 147,760 120,861 163,714 190,672 19,871,699 (765,777) (379.963)
(3.415,785) (2,613,463) $ (267.249) $ 3,780,721 $ (495290) $ 16859837 $  (7.912.692) $  (10.753,134)
16.3% 17.5% 14.4% 13.9% 13.7% 18.7% 13.8% 13.5%
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General government tax revenues by source — last eight years

Fiscal Year Insurance Real estate
ended June 30, Property Tax Sales Tax premium tax recording taxes Other Taxes Total
2010 5 8,213,871 § 5963470 $ 518862 $ 116,810 $ 133,615 $ 14,946,628
2009 8,185,803 5,797,590 526,410 173,461 141,240 14,824,504
2008 8,222,109 6,569,439 513,885 213,685 152,497 15,671,615
2007 7,670,738 6,359,917 488,710 261,507 167,705 14,948,577
2006 7,367,506 6,303,494 466,340 289,000 163,146 14,589,486
2005 6,775,193 4,998,280 436,698 217,697 184,186 12,612,054
2004 6,011,047 4,127,396 403,595 229,384 148,373 10,919,795
2003 $ 5,643,722 $ 3,868401 $ 376,331 % 212,405 3 190,675 § 10,291,534



Morgan County, Georgia
Statistical Section

General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues:
Taxes and commissions
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Charges for services
Donation
Interest income
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current
General government
Judicial
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfarc
Culture and recreation
Housing and development
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures
Other financing sources/(uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Sale of general fixed assets
Contracts payable issued
Total other financing sources/(uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund Balance-Beginning of Year
Fund Balance-End of Year

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 2010

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
10,911,402 § 11,228,806 3 11,831,581 & 11,431,646 3 11,465,747
349,773 281,189 185,357 105,793 101,929
396,869 540,105 318,861 359,709 390,345
656,066 781,701 684,319 639,598 771,061
886,778 829,859 891,097 841,316 1,207,090
1,230 5,725 145 90 35,810
88,827 248,425 241,500 91,535 78,097
24,860 97,955 50,619 15,393 35,202
13,315,805 14,013,765 14,203,479 13,485,080 14,085,281
1,725,098 2,158,664 2,455,193 2,676,798 2,985,485
895,604 956,915 1,056,516 1,109,135 1,136,456
3,330,280 3,524,318 3,648,713 3,970,104 4,175,227
1,653,239 1,781,081 1,693,644 1,437,395 1,410,296
1,239,187 1,230,132 1,257,261 1,318,927 1,613,427
475,140 488,599 539,226 573,514 885,626
635,622 726,479 818,546 692,717 605,095
270,445 2,125,194 - 80,612 80,089
102,523 200,283 132,045 139,840 139,811
88,995 113,135 88,592 71,438 64,270
10,416,133 13,304,800 11,689,736 12,070,480 13,095,782
2,899,672 708,965 2,513,743 1,414,600 989,499
119,611 109,453 397,159 101,613 462,906
(1,356,870) (1,520,860) (3,045,326) (1,594,849) (425,000)
38,535 26,663 4,000 46,908 25,284
- 1,000,000 67,311 - -
(1,198,724) (384,744) (2,576,856) (1,446,328) 63,190
1,700,948 324,221 (63,113) (31,728) 1,052,689
3486058 5,187,006 5,511,227 5,448,114 5,416,386
5,187,006 § 5,511,227  § 5448,114 § 5,416,386 $ 6,469,075

Source: Audited Financial Statements of Morgan County for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010.
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Assessed value and estimated actual value of taxable property — last ten fiscal years

Assessed Value

Fiscal Year
ended Tax Residential Commercial Motor Less: Total Taxable Total Direct Total Actual as ol a Percentage
June 30,  Year Property Property Vehicles Other' Tax Exemptions Assessed Value Tax Rate Taxable Value of Actual Value
2001 2000 $ 397,626,718 § 147290,557 § 38344076 § 10,549791  $ 104,370,288 § 489,440,854 11.250 § 1,223,602,135 40%
2002 2001 457,247,070 141,836,439 41,998,500 6,947,180 129,720,062 518,309,127 10.910 1,295,772.818 40%
2003 2002 469,536,743 141,941,008 44,568,320 5,170,014 133,198,772 528,017,313 11.250 1,320,043.283 40%
2004 2003 658,534,935 149,267,589 48.213,150 6,829,226 206,268,713 656,576,187 9490 1,641,440,468 40%
20035 2004 670,445,561 145,267,117 48,479,760 4,276,804 225,031,597 643,437,645 10.700 1,608,594,113 40%
2006 2005 697,170,204 166,301,715 48,073,660 5,530,399 234,666,879 682,409,099 10.700 1,706,022,748 40%
2007 2006 722,375,585 185,820,008 47,142,720 0,518,751 241,193,898 720,663,166 10.700 1,801,657,915 40%
2008 2007 1,088,822,025 233,779,171 53,109,520 9,906,196 391,998,538 993,618,374 8.430 2,484,045,935 40%
2009 2008 1,109,310,928 236,448,698 55,981,010 7,957,615 402,640,730 1.007,057,521 8.350 2,517.643,803 40%
2010 2009 § 1,129,607.268  § 236,562,590 § 58,619,790 $ 7129457 § 413943966  § 1,017.975,139 8.180 §  2,544.937.848 40%

Source: Georgia Department of Revenue www.etax.dor.ga.gov

1 . 2 P
Includes Mobile home, timber, and heavy equipment.
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Direct and overlapping property tax rates — last ten fiscal years (rate per $1,000 of assessed value)

Tax Year
Fiscal Year

Jurisdiction:
County
City of
Bostwick
Buckhead
Madison
Comm bus light
Interste light
Rutledge

School

Source: Morgan County Tax Commissioner’s Office

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
11.250 10.910 11.250 9.490 10.700 10.700 10.700 8.430 8.350 8.178
0.970 0.965 0.962 0.970 0.970 0.970 0.970 0.970 0.970 0.970
3.490 3.250 3.500 2930 2.960 2.960 2.960 2245 2.245 2.105
3.220 3.218 3.199 3.660 3.900 3.738 3.995 3312 3.583 3.577
1.150 1.500 1.150 0.809 0.804 0.881
1.150 1.150 1.150 0.809 0.804 0.790
5.190 5.190 5.190 5.190 5.190 5.000 5.000 3.779 3.779 3.734
16.000 16.000 16.000 15.500 15.442 16.000 15.985 12.735 12.724 12.461
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Principal property tax payers — current and nine years ago

2010 2001
Taxable Percentage of Taxable Percentage of
Assessed Total Taxable Assessed Total Taxable

Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value
Weyerhaeuser Real Estate 9,849,760 1 0.97% 5,695,974 4 1.16%
Georgia-Pacific Wood Products Lic 7,744,433 2 0.76% 7,490,268 2 1.53%
Georgia Power Co 7,054,871 3 0.69% 4,389,332 8 0.90%
Lowes Home Centers Inc 5,886,635 4 0.58%
Amtico Intemational, Inc. 4,978,337 5 0.49% 4,796,456 6
CRBard Inc 4,823,566 6 047% 5,516,129 5 1.13%
Pennington Seed, Inc. 3,997,990 7 0.39% 4,347,590 9 0.89%
Bellsouth Telecom AT&T 3,504,714 8 0.34% 4,465,353 7 0.91%
Georgia Transmission Corp 3,463,178 9 0.34% 0.00%
Walmart (Zom Eric S Trustee of) 3,414,080 10 0.34%
Georgia-Pacific Corporation 5,993 815 3
Walton Emc 2,641,498 0.26% 2,983,143 10 0.61%
Denon Digital Ind 12,561,506 1 2.57%

Totals $ 57.359,062 5.63% 58,239,566 9.69%

Source: Morgan County Tax Assessors Office
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Property tax levies and collections — last ten fiscal years

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy

Fiscal Year Total Tax Collections in Total Collections to Date
Ended Tax Levy for Percentage Subsequent Percentage
June 30, Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2002 2001 5,512,156 5,230,114 94.9% 279,617 5,509,731 100.0%
2003 2002 5,775,526 5,421,888 93.9% 347,658 5,769,546 99.9%
2004 2003 6,161,852 5,691,987 92.4% 460,139 6,152,126 99.8%
2005 2004 6,759,022 6,370,295 94.2% 384,112 6,754,407 99.9%
2006 2005 7,185941 6,838,802 95.2% 301,221 7,140,023 99.4%
2007 2006 7,578,598 7,206,921 95.1% 312,012 7,518,932 99.2%
2008 2007 8,442,189 7,903,823 93.6% 510,259 8,414,082 99.7%
2009 2008 8,368,671 7,860,103 93.9% 403,349 8,263,452 98.7%
2010 2009 8,198,849 7,746,847 94.5% 20,600 7,767,448 94.7%
2010 2010 486,072 473,404 97.4% - 473,404 97.4%

Source: Morgan County Tax Commissioner’s Office

Real and personal property taxes are levied in the fall after the June 30 year end; those taxes are included in the next fiscal. Motor vehicle taxes are
reported in the fiscal year that they are collected. Mobile home taxes are levied in April; they are recorded in the fiscal year that they are levied.
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Ratios of outstanding debt by type — last ten years

Fiscal Year Governmental Activities Total Percentage
Ended Capital Contracts Primary of Personal Per
June 30, Leases Payablel Government Income Capita
2001 $ 249,396 $ 2,135.241 $ 2,384,637 0.52% $ 149
2002 6,312,277 1,305,000 7.617277 1.64% 476
2003 5,415,349 1,260,000 6,675,349 1.41% 408
2004 4,119,606 1,215,000 5,334,606 1.03% 321
2005 2,947,305 1,170,000 4,117,305 0.76% 244
2006 2,229,816 1,125,000 3,354,816 0.59% 189
2007 789,811 1,988,135 2,777,946 0.45% 153
2008 419423 19,509,938 19,929,361 3.14% 1,071
2009 342 878 18,481,643 18,824,521 Not available 1,003
2010 $ 266,518 $ 17,413,191 $ 17,679,709 Not available § 934

The schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics provides information on personal income and population.

! Debt excludes premiums and discounts
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Direct and overlapping governmental activities debt as of June 30,2010

Government Unit

Direct:

Intergovernmental Contracts:'

Morgan County Public Purpose Corporation

Jomt Development Authority of Jasper County, Morgan
County, Newton County, and Walton County Bonds

Joint Development Authority of Jasper County, Morgan
County, Newton County, and Walton County GEFA Loan

Morgan County Building Authority

Total Direct Debt

Overlappmg:
Morgan County Board of Education - Installment sales agreement
City of Madison - Capital kease obligations
City of Rutledge - GEFA loan; Revenue bonds
City of Buckhead - GEFA loan
Total Overlapping Debt

Total Dircet and Overlapping Debt

Per Capita Debt (4)

Percentage of Gross Tax Digest (5)

Per Capita Debt as Percentage of Per Capita Income (6)

(1) Based upon direct debt of

(2) Based upon overlapping debt chargeable to the County of

(3) Based upon overall debt chargeable to the County of

(4) Based upon LS. Census Bureau estimated 2009 population figure of
(5) Based upon 2010 Gross TaxDigest of (PT32.1)

(6) Based upon BEA 2008 per capita income figure ol

Source: Each specific government

' The financial obligations under intergovernmental contracts are general obligations of the governmental entity to which its full faith and credit and taxing powers
are pledged, unless a specific millage rate limitation applies. The financial obligations under intergovernmental contracts do not constitute debt for purposes of the

constitutional debt limit.

Estimated

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 2010

Estimated Share

Percentage of Underlymg
Debt Outstanding Applicable Deht

$ 259212
900,000
58,191
16,455,000

17,672,403 100.0% $ 17672403

240,806 100.0% 240,806

1,734343 100.0% 1,734,343

483,334 100.0% 483,334

58313 100.0% 58313

2,516,796 2.516.796

Direct Tax Supported

Overlapping Tax

$  20.189.199

Owverall Tax

Debt (1) Supported Debt (2)  Supported Debt (3)
S 93391 § 133.00 § 1,066.91
1.45% 0.21% 1.66%
2.74% 0.39% 3.13%
3 17,672,403
$ 2,516,796
$ 20,189,199
18,923
5 1.214,994.677
b3 34,086
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Legal debt margin information — last ten fiscal years

Assessed value of property

Debt limt, 10% of assessed value

Amount of debt applicable to
limnit

General Obligation Bonds
Less: Resources restricted to
paying principal

Total net debt applicable to the

limit
Legal debt margin

Total net debt applicable to the
limit as a percentage of debt limit

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for

Fiscal Yecar 2010

Assessed value

Add back: exempt real property

Total assessed value

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
593,811,142 648,029,189 661,216,085 862,844,900 868,469,242 917,075,978 961,857,067 1385616912  1,409,698.251  1.431,919,105
59,381,114 64,802,919 66,121,609 86,284,490 86,846,924 91,707,598 96,185,707 138,561,691 140,969,825 143,191,911
$59381,114 §64,802,919 366,121,609 S 86284490 $ 86,846,924 $91,707,598 $ 96,185,707 § 138,561,691 § 140,969,825 § 143,191,911
0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
$1,017,975,139

Debt limit: 10% of total assessed value

Total net debt applicable to limit

Legal debt margin

413,943,966
1431919105

143.191911

0
$_.143,191,911
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Demographic and cconomic statistics — last ten fiscal years

Per Capita Unemployment
Year PopulationI Personal Income' Personal Income Rate’
2001 16002 § 457265000 $ 28,575 33
2002 16,373 464,172,000 28,350 4.1
2003 16,602 472,325,000 28,450 4.2
2004 15,890 516,725,000 32,519 4.2
2005 17,279 540,885,000 31,303 4.5
2006 17,774 573,229,000 32251 43
2007 18,185 616,880,000 33,922 44
2008 18,600 $ 634,008,000 $ 34,086 6.0
2009 18,761 Not Available Not Available 9.6
2010 18923 ° Not Available Not Available 9.9

Source: ' Bureau of Economic Analysis; * U. S. Bureau of Labor Statistics; > U. S. Estimated
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Principal employers current and nine years ago
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2009 2000
Percentage of Percentage of
Total County Total County
Employer Employees Rank  Employment Employees Rank  Employment

Board of Education 535 1 9.2% 475 ] 5.5%
Georgia-Pacific Wood Products LLC 300 2 52% 425 2 4.9%
Wal-Mart 276 3 4.7%
Morgan Memoral Hospital 190 4 3.3%
Morgan County Govemment 175 5 3.0%
Pennington Partners LP 175 6 3.0% 200 3 23%
Lowes Home Centers Inc 107 7 1.8%
Bard Manufacturing 97 8 1.7% 150 7 1.7%
Flambeau 80 9 1.4% 190 5 22%
Cracker Barrel 75 10 1.3%
City of Madison 55 10 0.6%
Denon Digital Ind 225 4 2.6%
Wellington Puritan 170 6 2.0%
Ivex Packaging 9 8 1.0%
Canyon Café Operating 75 9 0.9%

Source: Morgan County Chamber of Commerce
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Full-time equivalent county employees — last four years '

2007 2008 2009 2010

General government 36.5 36.5 39.0 34.0
Judicial 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0
Public safety 73.0 73.0 73.0 83.5
Public works 420 420 4.0 335
Health and welfare 9.0 9.0 90 9.0
Culture and recreation 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5
Housing and development 9.5 9.5 9.5 9.0

197.5 197.5 200.0 196.5

Source: Morgan County Finance Department — budget and payroll data

! Detail information prior to 2007 not available.
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Operating indicators by function — last four years '

2007 2008 2009 2010

Sheriff

Accident reports 298 237 272 208

Criminal incidents 543 490 576 418

Deputies/ 1,000 population 1 1 1 1
Fire

Calls 469 352 296 320
Judicial

Marriage license 138 104 145 100

Pistol permits 102 176 399 217
Highways and streets

Miles of right-of-way mowed® - - 2,104 1,559

Miles of shoulder work® - - 134 148
Sanitation

Refuse collected (tons/day) 684 620 639 547

Recyclables collected (tons/day) 322 365 377 343
Parks and recreation

Adult athletic part.icipams3 - - - 6,492

Aquatic center part.icipams3 - - - 21,880

Youth athletic participam.s3 - - - 21,060
Senior Center

Congregate meals 6,263 6,283 6,739 7,470

Home delivered meals 3,970 4,253 5,247 6,686
Transit

Average daily trips?® - - 91 96
Protective inspection

Building permits 254 165 93 66

Source: County operating departments

! Detail information prior to 2007 not available.
2 Detail information prior to 2009 not available.
} Detail information prior to 2010 not available.
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Capital assets statistics by function - last ten years
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Function/Program 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
General government
Vehicles 4 5 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 8 8
Public Safety
Jail cells 67 67 67 67 67 78 78 78 78 78 192
K-9 units 1 ] 0 1 1 I 1 1 3 3 2
Fire Stations 9 9 9 11 13 13 13 13 13 13 13
Public works
Streets (miles) 442 442 443 438 438 438 438 438 438 438 438
Health and welfare
Senior service centers | 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 I 1 1
Transit buscs 1 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Parks and recrcation
Acreage total 50 50 50 120 120 120 120 120 120 120 120
Swimming pools 2 2 2 1 1 1 - - - 1 |
Tennis courts 4 4 4 4 4 4 12 12 12 12 12
Baseball fileds 3 4 6 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 8
Soccer fileds 1 i 1 | | 1 | 1 1 1 1
Playgrounds 6 6 6 6 6 5 7 7 7 7 5
Libraries 1 l 1 1 1 1 l 1 1 | 1
Sanitation
Compactor sites 9 9 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12

Source: County operating departments
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

December 29, 2010

Board of Commissioners
Morgan County, Georgia
Madison, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA as of, and for the year ended June 30,
2010, which collectively comprise the MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA’s basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated December 29, 2010. Our report was modified to include a reference
to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the
financial statements of the Morgan County Health Department and Morgan County Hospital Authority, as
described in our report on MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA's basic financial statements. This report does
not include the results of the other auditor's testing of internal control over financial reporting or
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA's internal control over
financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.



Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purposec described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting, described below that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material wcakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Finance
2010-01 Statement of Condition:
Audit adjustments of $110,688 were necessary to properly reflect accounts payable and related
expenditure/expense account balances at year end.

Criteria:

Internal controls should be in place to ensure proper accruals at year end. The financial
statements should include accruals of accounts payable in order to properly reflect
expenditures/expenses for the year.

Effect of Condition:
Accounts payable and expenditures are understated for the year.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls were not in place to properly detect material misstatements in the County's
expenditures/expenses and related liability accounts. The accounting software does not have
the capability of easily accumulating this information. The County finance staff did not
accumulate the information manually but left the accrual for the auditor to do.

Recommendation:
We recommend the County carefully review all expenditure/expense and related liabilities to
ensure all necessary transactions are reported in the proper period.

Response:
We concur. The Finance Director will counsel and train staff on the appropriate recording of

transactions.

2010-02 Statement of Condition:
Capital assets arc not being properly maintained and accounted for.

Criteria:

Procedures should be in place to ensure that all capital assct additions are accounted for while
non-capital items are not recorded as capital assets at the entity-wide level. Capital outlay
accounts should only be used to account for capital additions that meet the established
capitalization threshold. Those assets that meet that threshold should be entered into accounting
software and depreciation calculated for the year.

Effect of Condition;
Total additions did not agree with the amounts recorded in the gencral ledger. The donation of
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2010-03

capital assets also had not been properly recorded in the general ledger and therefore assets
were not properly valued.

Cause of Condition:
An excel worksheet was used to accumulate additions rather than Assct Keeper sofiware and
additions on worksheet included items that should not be capitalized.

Recommendation:

It is our recommendation that procedures be put into place so that asscts are maintained and
accounted for properly. Report totals for additions and deletions at year end should be
reconciled with capital outlay accounts in the general ledger. It is also our recommendation that
the asset listing should be compared to assets listed on the insurance policy. A list of assets by
department should be given to each department head to review annually. These procedures will
cnsure that assets are being properly added or disposed from the accounting software..

Response:
We concur. The Finance Director will counsel and train staff on the appropriate recording of

transactions. The Financc Director will implement the use of an excel schedule provided by the
auditors to account for capital assets.

Statement of Condition:

This was a prior year recommendation. There was a significant difference in the amount
recorded in the general ledger for gasoline inventory and our estimate of what the amount
should be. We used the ending balance in gallons from the gasoline readings and multiplied it
by the price per gallon shown on the last invoice for the year to recalculate an estimate of
ending inventory amount. Actual inventory was approximately $50,000 lower than the amount
reported in the general ledger. Approximately $27,600 of this total is an uncorrected difference
from the prior year.

Criteria:
In order to ensure proper reporting, the balance reported in the general ledger should be
reasonably close to the amount reported from the gasoline readings.

Effect of Condition:
Gasoline inventory appears to be overstated by $50,000.

Cause of Condition:

The ending inventory balance after each reading is not reviewed for reasonableness to ensure
that the inventory balance in the general ledger is reasonably close to the ending gasoline
readings. We have not determined if the reason for the difference is due to crediting inventory
used at a different price than was used to record the purchase, if there are problems in capturing
all of the inventory withdrawals so that the proper entry can be recorded, or some other issue.

Recommendation:
We recommend that any policies and procedures related to the use and accounting for that use
of county gasoline be revised or updated. The balance in the inventory account should be
compared to actual amounts at the end of each month. Large differences should be investigate
in an attempt to determine the cause. A corrcction in the general ledger should be made for
small adjustments.
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2010-04

2010-03

Responsc:
The Finance Director will review reports to identify the cause of the difference in the inventory

amounts. The Finance Department will establish a monthly reconciliation schedule and
procedures to ensure balances are kept in check. The Finance Director will meet with Roads
and Bridges staff responsible for fuel monitoring to discuss inventory program and reports.

Statement of Condition:
Amounts due to and from other funds and transfers between funds did not balance.

Criteria:
The amounts should balance in order to properly reflect revenues and expenditures by fund.

Effect of Condition:
Several journal entrics were required to balance these items.

Cause of Condition:

The proper entries were not made to reflect transfers for the Senior Center, Transit, and Parks
& Recreation funds that were closed into the General Fund effective July 1, 2009. The proper
entries were not madc to reflect transfers for the Jail, Youth Enrichment, and Drug Abuse
Treatment & Education funds that were combined into a new Special Revenue fund effective
July 1, 2009. There were also some year end accruals recorded in the gencral fund that affected
expenditures in other funds such as E911 and solid waste. Corresponding entries in those funds
had not been made in the due to/duc from accounts.The amounts were not reviewed on a
periodic basis.

Recommendation:
We recommend that amounts due to and from other funds and transfers between funds be
reviewed and balanced every month.

Response:
The Senior Center, Transit and Parks and Recreation funds were closed; this will no longer be a

statement of condition for these funds. The Jail, Youth Enrichment, and Drug Abuse Treatment
& Education funds were transferred to one fund; this will no longer be a statement of condition
for these funds. Transactions for E911 and Solid Waste will be reviewed on a periodic basis so
that appropriate entries are recorded.

Statement of Condition:
Some expenditures were not recorded in the proper funds.

Criteria:
Expenses should be reported in the funds to which they apply.

Effect of Condition:
Expenditures of approximately $400,000 were not recorded in the E911 fund and $350,000 in
the solid waste fund.

Cause of Condition:
For the E911 and solid waste funds, reimbursements from those funds to the general fund were
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recorded as transfers rather than to detailed expense accounts. Reimbursements from one fund
to another should have the expenditures recorded in detailed object codes in the reimbursing
fund. In the fund which is being repaid, the reimbursement should be recorded as credits to the
same accounts that the original expenditures were recorded. The effect should be that no

expense shows in the general fund while the correct amount of expenses are recorded in the
E911 & solid waste funds.

The need for this multi-step process is due to deficiencies in the software system that does not
allow recording of expenses in one fund that were paid for by another fund.

Recommendation:

We recommend that reimbursements be accounted for properly on a monthly basis. We
previously have provided the finance staff detailed work sheets about how this process should
work along with checks and balances to use to monitor that the entries have been done
correctly.

Response:

Beginning January 1, 2011 the County is implementing new financial software. This new
software will allow for a streamlined process for recording appropriate transactions between
funds.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA's response to the findings identified in our audit is described above.

We did not audit MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Commissioners,

others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

S, G 145 L1y
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
Year Ended June 30, 2010

This plan addresses findings included in the various auditors’ reports prepared as
a result of complying with Federal and State audit laws for the year ended June 30, 2010.
These findings have been discussed with management, who agree with the
recommendations. Many of the items have already been corrected. Other items are in
the process of being corrected, while others will be started shortly. We anticipate that the
changes will be completed by June 30, 2010.

Yellow Book Report

FINDING
NUMBER

Significant Deficiencies

2010-01 Response: We concur. The Finance Director will counsel and train staff on
the appropriate recording of transactions.

2010-02 Response: We concur. The Finance Director will counsel and train staff on
the appropriate recording of transactions. The Finance Director will implement
the use of an excel schedule provided by the auditors to account for capital
assets.

2010-03 Response: The Finance Director will review reports to identify the cause of
the difference in the inventory amounts. The Finance Department will establish
a monthly reconciliation schedule and procedures to ensure balances are kept
in check. The Finance Director will meet with Roads and Bridges staff
responsible for fuel monitoring to discuss inventory program and reports.

2010-04 Response: The Senior Center, Transit and Parks and Recreation funds were
closed; this will no longer be a statement of condition for these funds. The Jail,
Youth Enrichment, and Drug Abuse Treatment & Education funds were
transferred to one fund; this will no longer be a statement of condition for these
funds. Transactions for E911 and Solid Waste will be reviewed on a periodic
basis so that appropriate entries are recorded.



2010-05 Response: Beginning January 1, 2011 the County is implementing new
financial software. This new software will allow for a streamlined process for
recording appropriate transactions between funds.

Sincerely,

Mia Wilson
Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
December 29, 2010

Board of Commissioners
Morgan County, Georgia
Madison, Georgia

We have examined management’s assertion included in the accompanying Annual Report of 9-1-1
Collections and Expenditures about Morgan County, Georgia’s compliance during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010 with the requirement to expend 9-1-1 funds in compliance with the expenditure
requirements of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 46-5-134. Management is responsible
for Morgan County, Georgia’s compliance with this requirement. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on management’s assertion about Morgan County, Georgia’s compliance based on our
examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with the attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Morgan County, Georgia’s compliance with this requirement and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable

basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on Morgan County,
Georgia’s compliance with the specified requirement.

In our opinion, management’s assertion that Morgan County, Georgia has complied with the

aforementioned requirement during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 is fairly stated, in all material
respects.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Georgia Department of
Audits and Accounts and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified

parties.
by Gtyrd LLy

WWW.BATESCARTER.COM



Line

No.

9%b

9c

9d

Morgen County, Georgia
Annual Report of 9-1-1 Collections and Expenditures

For the Year Ended
June 30, 2009

Indicate UCOA Fund Type Used to Account for 9-1-1 Activity (choose one):

_X___ Special Revenue Fund

Enterprise Fund

Monthly 9-1-1 charge billed to each exchange access facility subscriber: 46@,{3(“)(@;:] 1.50
Total revenue from exchange access facility subscribers:
Dots 9-1-1 system provide automatic number identification of a
wireless telecommunications connection? (choose one)
_X__ Yes No Phase One
1f the answer to Line 4 is “yes", indicate below which of the
following apply (choose one)
__X___ System provides location of base station or cell site HESDAEIENH]
System provides automatic location identification 46534 (Y2)E);
If the answer to Line 4 is "yes*, identify the monthy 9-1-1 charge R
billed to cach wireless telecommunications connection subscriber: 5@;:!3,4@)(‘2) i 1.50
Total revenue from wircless telccommunicati ion subscrit
Total Line 3 plus Line 7 (should equal UCOA Revenue Source 34.2500)
Additional revenue sources: iy g g
Federal (UCOA Revenue Source 33.1000) eI

Identify each funding agency individually. Attach list, if necessary.

State (UCOA Revenue Source 33.4000)
dentify each funding agency individually. Attach list, if necessary.

ST

Bl lal

Local (UCOA Revenue Source 33.6000)
1dentify each unit of local government individually. Attach list, if necessary.

46-531340)

Clty of Ruttedge
City of Madison
Private (UCOA Revenue Source 37.1000) BestaRDwEEh

Identify each private source individually. Attach list, il necessary.

Page 1 of 4

H 121,250.26

s 187,836.25

S 30908651

H

H 110,000.00

I
L




Morgan County, Georgia

Annual Report of 9-1-1 Collections and Expenditutes

Page 2 of 4

For the Year Ended
June 30, 2009
Line
No.
10 Investment Income (UCOA Revenue Source 36. 1000 through 36.3000) S 1,604.59
11 Other rever not included above.
Identify each source individually. Transfers from othet funds of the
local government should be reported on Line 25 and not included here.
Wrecker Fees H .
Miscellancous Revenue S -
H
s
H
H
H
S
12 Total Revenues {total of all amounts reported on Lines 8 through 11) s 420,691.10
Expenditures (UCOA Activity 3800) X .
13 Wircless service supplier cost recovery charges EOTEO)
(identify each supplier individuatly on lines below - attach list, if necessary)
AT&T S 4,237.01
Sprint S 2,186.47
Souther Linc S 673.65
14 Emergency telephone equipment, including necessaty computer hardware,
software, and data base provisioning, addressing, and nonrecurring costs of
establishing a 9-1-1 system:
143 Lease costs RIEHE e s
14b  Purchase costs H65A3MNHMT. ] S
14c Maintenance costs m s
15 Rates associsted with the service suppliess 9-1-1 service and other service
B P R A e s i das]
supplicrs recurring charges A6 s 123,426.12
16  Employees hired by the local government solely for the operation and
maintenance of the emergency 9-1-1 system:
Number of employees classified as: Full time 30 Parttime 2
16a Salaries and wages s 307,942.10
16b Employee bensfits S 84,687.89

13mane
100 A8




Line

No.

17 Cost of training of employees who work as dispaichers

Morgan County, Georgia

Annval Report of 9-1-1 Collections and Expenditures

For the Year Ended
June 30, 2009

18 Office supplies of the public safety answering points used directly in

19a  Building used as a public safety answering point:

19al

1922

1%

20

202

20

20¢

2

—

222
22p

22¢

23 Other expenditures not included in Lines 13 through 22 above.

providing emergency 9-1-1 system services

Lease costs

Purchase costs

Has the local govemment completed its street addressing plan? (choose one)

X Yes No

Compuler hardware and software used at a public safety answering point, including

compuler assisted dispatch systems:
Lease costs
Purchase costs

Maintenance costs

46:3:134(DM85 - 1§

KSEED O

Supplies directly related to providing emergency 9-1-1 system services,

including the cost of printing emesgenty 9-1-1 public education materials

Logging recorders used at a public safety answeting point 1o record

telephone and radio traffic:
Lease costs
Purchase costs

Maintenance costs

FIZRETT ¢ s

G530
OIS
B ]

Identify by object and purpose. Transfers to other funds of the local govemment

should be reported on Line 26 and not included here.

Property and liability insurance

Energy - Gasoline/diesel

Communications - Telephone and postage and shipping

Advertising

Dues and fees

Utilities - Generator

Uniforms/clothing

Other supplies

Professional

24 Total Expenditures (total of all amounts reported on Lines 13 through 23 above)

Page 3 of 4

6 S 1,020.39

78 2,720.62

S 154,931.13

(LR J—

1s 911.98
3 580.73
123 86.96
13§ 54.00
143 312.00
153 21500
163
173
183
S 691,160.08

oz
wnau

A



Mugan Coumy. Georgia
Aamzal Report of 9e1.1 Colfections and Espenditres

For the Year Emlad
June 30,2010

Nev

Line 006,
i

25 Transfers From Other Punds Gidentily by el

26 Jramsfors S Other Fumbs tidentity by fund)

27 Procends fiomn Capital §caze Gitlentify by asset class and, il cyvipment, purposc)

H

H
28 Not Change in Fund Balance (Lime 12« Line 24 + Line 25 - Line 26 + Line 27) § __(270468.90)
2 Fund Balunce - Beginning of Year S S16,22010
3¢ Fund Balanee - End ol Year S 246.25).20

3a Doammmis oa Lings 12, 24, 25, 29, and 30 agrev tv amounts seported in the
govenunent's audited financial submitied 10 the Geargia
Department of Atdits and Accoimis?

N_ Yes No

b iftheansuer to Line 314 1 "a0™, provide explanation fincleding amsunts) ta recangile
cach line stem specificd in | ine 312 above to g s awlited 6 | ents. Reconciliation
should be atiached to this toport.

Certificallon of Lacal Goveramenl ()fficialy

Fhvse meviewed the information presented in this repors and certify that it fs accurate amd comecl, | funther cennify thay

the 9.1<1 fumds were expended in compliance with the expenditure requirements specified in the Oflicial Code ol Gvorgin

Annatated (OUGA), Section 96.5.134. § undesriand that, in accondance with OCGA Section $6.5.134(m(2), any hical

goremntnent which makes expenditures not in compliance with this Code sectivn may be held Hable for pro mty

rennbunsement to tefephone and wireless Ielocommunications subseribers of amounts improperly expeaded. Further. the
liant tocal g $ stall be solely finangially responsible for the reimbursement and for any costs

associated with the celmburement, Such reimbursement sliall be accomplished by senice poviders ahating the

mposition of the 931 charges sind Y-1-1 wisetess eahanced charges untit such ahatement cquals the (ol amount

of the rctate,

Signature of Chicf Eleeted Oiicio) Zi ;M ,Z M { Date / 2—/ ”4/ w10

PPrint Name of Chict’ Electad Oficial: Mock 8. Boblen, Se.

Title of Chicf klceted Official: Chateman

. . L L /29 /207D
Sumature of Chict” Financial Oie TM. (e Date /"/ &
A\ 2l 5 Nt e

Prnt Name of Chiet Financial Oflices: Mia Wilson
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